
SCHOOL DISTRICT OF MANAWA
AD-HOC SAFETY COMMITTEE MEETING

AGENDA

Please note the meeting will convene in the MS/HS West Parking Lot just outside the
Fitness Center.

Join with Google Meet
meet.google.com/iwr-tijx-cve

Join by phone
(US) +1 929-251-5962 PIN: 166 418 498#

Date: January 5, 2022 Time: 5:30 p.m.

Hybrid Meeting Format (MES Board Room, 800 Beech Street & Virtual Components)

Board Committee Member: Hollman
Committee Members: Dr. Melanie Oppor, Dan Wolfgram, Jeff Bortle, Danni Brauer, LuAnne
Ujazdowski, Janine Connolly, Jill Seka, Nate Ziemer, Chief James Gorman, Chief Rob Rosenau,
Sheriff Tim Wilz, Arndy Carlin, Mayor Mike Frazier, Krystal Draeger, Jill Timm, Eric
Pynenberg, Amanda Bruette, Michelle Krisher, Russ Hollman, Justin Buschke, Keither Jepson,
and Emma Riske

In Attendance:

Timer:_________________________         Recorder: _____________________________

1. Discuss and Make Recommendations Regarding Exterior Lighting (Information /
Action)

a. Manawa Elementary School
b. Manawa Middle/Little Wolf High School

2. Review the Results of the Safety Assessment for Manawa Elementary School
(Information / Action)

a. Issues
b. Recommendations
c. Other

3. Review the Results of the Safety Assessment for Manawa Middle School/Little Wolf
High School (Information / Action)

a. Issues
b. Recommendations
c. Other

4. Review Results of the Safety Assessment for Paving the Way (Information / Action)
a. Issues
b. Recommendations
c. Other

https://meet.google.com/iwr-tijx-cve?authuser=0&hs=122


5. Initial Review of New District Safety Handbook and Free Online Resources
(Information / Action)

6. Set Next Meeting Date:  ____________________
7. Next Meeting Items:

a. Review and Revise District Safety Handbook
b. Other Issues of Concern to the District Ad hoc Safety Committee
c. Prepare Recommendations for Board of Education
d. Other

8.  Adjourn



Page 1 of 2 
 

Manawa School District Site survey 12-2-2021 

 

Elementary School and District Office 

 Provide fire extinguisher training to staff. 

 Locate fire extinguisher signs higher and/or perpendicular to the wall 

 Provide red reflective squares on lower portion of mechanical room doors. 

 Remove door stops from exterior doors. 

 Name main hallways (include on floor plans) 

 Several store rooms had missing ceiling tiles. 

 All staff should have fob access to both buildings. 

 Provide safety vests for staff 

 Number gym doors on the inside. 

 There are no cameras inside the gym. 

 Fence on north side electrical/generator needs to be locked. 

 Consider radio battery replacement program 

 Fire alarm pull station in gym is not protected. 

 Install fence between parking lot and playground area. 

 Identify storm shelter locations closer to classroom areas. 

 Take “GO KITS” to shelter locations. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 2 of 2 
 

 

Middle School/High School 

 Verify room numbers are clearly visible from hallway. 

 Teachers names should not be posted on classrooms. 

 All staff should have fob access to both buildings. 

 Provide safety vests for staff 

 Items should not be stored in vestibules. 

 Hall at west end of gym should not be used as a store room.  

 Art room store room has heavy boxes stacked too high. 

 Art room store room has a wooden ladder. 

 Darkroom is not secured. 

 Missing door on server room by library. 

 Mouse trap exposed in server room by library. 

 Unprotected light switches in the gym. 

 Custodial room double doors were open and not occupied. 

 Curtains on stage should be open. 

 Switchable motion sensor lights could be installed in hall by stage. 

 Provide fire extinguisher training to staff. 

 Locate fire extinguisher signs higher and/or perpendicular to the wall 

 Provide red reflective squares on lower portion of mechanical room doors. 

 Remove door stops from exterior doors. 

 Name main hallways (include on floor plans) 

 Fire door by main entrance does not seem to function properly. 

 Take “GO KITS” to shelter locations. 

 

 

Paving the Way 

 Place address sign on rear of building. 

 Install security camera(s). 

 



!"#$
%!&'(&)($
)#%*+'%#$
*)+!+,+-$$./0
!"#$%&'()%*+,-'.%)/#+0($+12"*#2#)&')3+45#+6&%).%$.+7#8"()8#+9$(&(/(*++
1)+%+:;<+=)>'$()2#)&

./0$%,"++-%$
&'($(1%!)1,!%

"+-( #2&,3&!# %"#-!#)-+,.(+4'%#,3)#

05
0/

!"
#$
%!

&'
(&

)(
$)
#%

*+
'%

#$
*)

+!
+,

+-
$6$
./

0





Peace 
It does not mean to be in a place where 
there is no noise, trouble, or hard work. 
It means to be in the midst of those things 
and still be calm in your heart.



Page 4 of 33

SRP K12 2021�ChAnGe hIStoRy 

© Copyright 2020, The “I Love U Guys” Foundation. All rights reserved. The Standard Response Protocol, The Standard Reunification Method and I Love U Guys are 
Trademarks of The “I Love U Guys” Foundation and may be registered in certain jurisdictions. This material may be duplicated for distribution by recognized schools, 
districts, departments and agencies per the Terms of Use.

AUTHOR/CONTRIBUTOR VERSION REVISION DATE REVISION COMMENTARY

John-Michael Keyes 1.0 03/02/2009 Original content

Russ Deffner 
John-Michael Keyes

2.0 01/08/2015 Version update. See: The Standard Response 
Protocol V2  
An Overview of What’s New in the SRP

Tom Kelley (TxSSC) 2.1 12/02/2017 Content, edits, formal inclusion of the Standard 
Response Protocol Extended “Hold in your 
classroom”. Texas School Safety Center version 

John-Michael Keyes 2.2 05/22/2018 Content, edits. Colorado School District Self 
Insurance Pool version. 

John-Michael Keyes 3.0 06/05/2019 Incorporated “Hold in your classroom or area” 
into the Standard Response Protocol 

John-Michael Keyes 4.0 01/17/2020 Replaced Term of Art Lockout with Secure

Ellen Stoddard-Keyes 4.0 06/23/2020 Added new content and incorporated Review 
Committee suggestions.

STANDARD
RESPONSE PROTOCOL®

A General Guide on Incorporating the Standard Response Protocol within a 
School Safety Plan - K-12 
 
Version 4.0 
ISBN-13: 978-1-951260-00-2 
 

THE STANDARD RESPONSE PROTOCOL  K12
Operational Guidance for Implementing The Standard Response Protocol  
In a K12 Environment

K12 SCHOOLS AND DISTRICTS

HOLD EVACUATE SHELTERLOCKDOWNSECURE

20
21

TH
E S

TA
ND

AR
D 

RE
SP

ON
SE

 P
RO

TO
CO

L -
 K

12



Author/Contributor informAtion 
John-Michael Keyes - Primary Author  
Executive Director, The “I Love U Guys” Foundation 
johnmichael@iloveuguys.org 
Russell Deffner - Contributing Author  
The “I Love U Guys” Foundation 
Advisor/Contractor/Volunteer  
Tom Kelley - Contributor, Texas School Safety Center 
Dr. David Benke - Teacher Guidance 
The “I Love U Guys” Foundation Board of Directors 
david@iloveuguys.org 
SrP rEViEW CommittEE 
The “I Love U Guys” Foundation SRP Review Committee 
is comprised of safety stakeholders from a variety of per-
spectives and professions. The charter of the committee 
is to advise on the merits of any substantive changes to 
The Standard Response Protocol. This ensures that 
changes will not be incorporated into the SRP without 
consideration or deliberation. 
The SRP Review Committee communicates on substantive 
changes to the SRP primarily through the electronic means 
of email or teleconference. 
The following are the current members of the SRP Review 
Committee. 
Heilit Biehl, Threat Assessment Coordinator, Adams 12 
Five Star Schools, Colorado 
Kevin Burd, Detective Lieutenant (Ret.), Priority of Life 
Training and Consulting, Hampton, NJ 
Kevin Carroll, Executive Director, JeffCo DeAngelis 
Foundation, Colorado 
Melissa Craven, Director of Emergency Management, 
Department of  Safety, Denver Public Schools, Colorado 
Kristen Devitt, M.Ed., CTM, Director, State of Wisconsin 
Department of Justice, Office of School Safety 
Ian Lopez, Director of Safety & Security, Cherry Creek 
Schools, Colorado 
Glenn Rehberg, Deputy Director, State of Wisconsin 
Department of Justice, Office of School Safety 
Jaclyn Schildkraut, PhD, Associate Professor, 
Department of Criminal Justice, State University of New 
York at Oswego 
Brad Stiles, M.A., Emergency Response Outreach 
Consultant, Colorado School Safety Resource Center 
Mike Thompson, Assistant Director of School Security, 
Syracuse City School District, New York 
 

SPECiAl thAnkS  
Joleen Reefe - City and County of Broomfield (Joleen 
coined the phrase, “Locks, Lights, Out of Sight.”) 
Pat Hamilton – Chief Operating Officer,  
Adams 12 Five Star Schools, Colorado 
John McDonald – Executive Director, Safety, Security 
and Emergency Planning, Jefferson County Public 
Schools, Colorado 
Heidi Walts – Commander, Northglenn Police 
Department, Colorado 
Marta Alejandro  – Spanish teacher and bilingual 
educational support professional / Spanish translator and 
interpreter 
ContACt informAtion 
The “I Love U Guys” Foundation can be reached online 
at http://iloveuguys.org.  
Email: srp@iloveuguys.org. 
The “I Love U Guys” Foundation  
PO Box 919  
Conifer, CO 80433  
303.426.3100  
rEQuESt for CommEnt 
The Standard Response Protocol is a synthesis of common 
practices in use at a number of districts, departments and 
agencies. The evolution of SRP has included review, com-
ment and suggestion from a number of practitioners. As 
of 2020, the SRP has been subjected to tactical scrutiny 
by hundreds of law enforcement agencies and operational 
review and adoption by thousands of schools. 
Suggestions for modification can be made via email at 
srp_rfc@iloveuguys.org. Please include contact information, 
district, department or agency, including day time phone. 
WArningS And diSClAimEr 
Every effort has been made to make this book as complete 
and accurate as possible, but no warranty or fitness is im-
plied. The information provided is on an “as is” basis. 
Please visit our website (https://iloveuguys.org) for the de-
tailed information. 

SRP K12 2021 | Standard Response Protocol | Version 3.0 | 05/04/2020                                                                                              Page 5 of 33



“Tactics are  
  intel driven.”

“But the environment  
 dictates tactics.”

– Deputy Chief A.J. DeAndrea 
– Civilian Translation: John-Michael Keyes

What we plan is based on what we know. 

But what we do, is based on where we are.



SRP K12 2021 | Standard Response Protocol | Version 3.0 | 05/04/2020                                                                                              Page 7 of 33

Table of ConTenTs 
The “I Love U Guys” Foundation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  8 
About This Book. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  8 
Commercial Licensing . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  8 
Terms of Use . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  8 
The “I Love U Guys” Foundation MOUs or Notice of Intent . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  9 
Introduction . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  10 
Time Barriers . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  10 
Before You Begin . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  11 
Secure vs. Lockdown . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  11 
Prerequisites: NIMS and ICS. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  12 
Memoranda of Understanding . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  13 
Classroom Posters . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  13 
Communication . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  14 
Hold . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  15 
Secure . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  16 
Lockdown . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  18 
Evacuate . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  20 
Police Led Evacuation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  21 
Information for Parents and Guardians . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  24 
Drills vs. Exercises . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  26 
SRP Evolution. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  26 
Lockdown Drill Guidance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  28 
Frequently Asked Questions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  30 
Appendix A - Lockdown Drill Worksheet. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  32



The “I Love U GUys” FoUndaTIon 
On September 27th, 2006 a gunman entered Platte 
Canyon High School in Bailey, Colorado, held seven girls 
hostage and ultimately shot and killed Emily Keyes. During 
the time she was held hostage, Emily sent her parents 
text messages... “I love you guys” and “I love u guys. k?” 
Emily’s kindness, spirit, fierce joy, and the dignity and grace 
that followed this tragic event define the core of The “I 
Love U Guys” Foundation.  
MIssIon 
The “I Love U Guys” Foundation was created to restore 
and protect the joy of youth through educational programs 
and positive actions in collaboration with families, schools, 
communities, organizations and government entities. 
CoMMITMenT  
There are several things we are committed to. The most 
important thing we can do is offer our material at no cost 
to schools, districts, departments, agencies and organi-
zations. The reason we are able to continue to provide 
this service is due, in part, to the generosity of our donors 
and Mission Partners (see Partner with Love on the web-
site). The “I Love U Guys” Foundation works very hard to 
keep our costs down as well as any costs associated with 
our printed materials. Donor and Mission Partner support 
allows us to stretch those dollars and services even more. 
Your gift, no matter the size, helps us achieve our mission.  
Your help makes a difference to the students, teachers, 
first responders, and the communities in which we live 
and work. 
aboUT ThIs book 
Since 2015, The Foundation offered optional classroom 
training that included “Hold in your classroom.” In 2017, 
The Foundation developed materials for The Standard Re-
sponse Protocol Extended (SRP-X) that included the Hold 
action. 
For SRP 2021, the Hold action is incorporated into the 
Standard Response Protocol. 
Also for SRP 2021, the Lockout action is being changed 
to Secure. 
The SRP K-12 2021 version is currently available to down-
load. Although SRP V2 is still valid, The I Love U Guys 
Foundation recommends updating to the newer version 
as soon as feasible. 
As you begin to implement and drill the protocol, keep in 
mind that environments are different. What that means is 
that we provide you with some tactics. Things we know. 

But your school, your agencies, and your environment, 
will ultimately dictate what you do. 
CopyrIGhTs and TradeMarks 
In order to protect the integrity and consistency of The 
Standard Response Protocol, The “I Love U Guys” Foun-
dation exercises all protection under copyright and trade-
mark. Use of this material is governed by the Terms of 
Use or a Commercial Licensing Agreement. 

CoMMerCIaL LICensInG 
Incorporating the SRP into a commercial product, like soft-
ware or publication, requires a commercial license. Please 
contact The “I Love U Guys” Foundation for more infor-
mation and costs.  
TerMs oF Use 
Schools, districts, departments, agencies and organiza-
tions may use these materials, at no cost, under the fol-
lowing conditions: 

Materials are not re-sold 1.
Core actions and directives are not modified 2.

Hold - “In Your Room or Area. Clear the 2.1.
Halls” 
Secure -”Get Inside, Lock Outside Doors” 2.2.
Lockdown - “Locks, Lights, Out of Sight” 2.<.
Evacuate - A Location may be specified 2.4.
Shelter - followed by the Hazard and the  2.5.

  Safety Strategy 
The Notification of Intent (NOI) is used when the <.
materials are being evaluated. A sample NOI can 
be downloaded from the website, and is provided 
to The “I Love U Guys” Foundation through one of 
the following: 

Complete the NOI and email it to <.1.
srp@iloveuguys.org  
Send an email to srp@iloveuguys.org <.2.

The Memorandum of Understating (MOU) is used 4.
when it has been determined that the materials 
will be used. A sample MOU can be downloaded 
from the website, and is provided to The “I Love U 
Guys” Foundation by emailing it to 
srp@iloveuguys.org 

The following modifications to the materials are 5.
allowable: 

Localization of evacuation events 5.1.
Localization of shelter events 5.2.
Addition of organization logo 5.<.

Page 8 of <<

STANDARD
RESPONSE PROTOCOL®



CERTIFICATION PROGRAMS 
The “I Love U Guys” Foundation is committed to providing 
its programs at no cost to a widening variety of organiza-
tions.  
To assess the fidelity of implementation within an organi-
zation, the Foundation has developed a certification pro-
gram for the Standard Response Protocol. The certification 
program is optional and is not required to use the SRP 
within your organization. 
ThE “I LOvE U GUyS” FOUNdATION MOUs 
OR NOTICE OF INTENT 
Some schools, districts, departments and agencies may 
also desire a formalized Memorandum of Understanding 
(MOU) with The “I Love U Guys” Foundation. Please visit 
https://iloveuguys.org for a current version of the MOU. 
The purpose of this MOU is to define responsibilities of 
each party and provide scope, clarity of expectations. It 
affirms agreement of stated protocol by schools, districts, 
departments and agencies. It also confirms the online 
availability of the Foundation’s materials. 
An additional benefit for the Foundation is in seeking fund-
ing. Some private grantors view the MOU as a demon-
stration of program effectiveness. 
Another option is to formally notify the Foundation with a 
Notice of Intent (NOI). This is a notice that you are reviewing 
the materials but have not adopted them yet. This is also 
available on the website.  
At a minimum, schools, districts, departments and agen-
cies that will ultimately incorporate the SRP into their safety 
plans and practices should email srp@iloveuguys.org and 
let us know. 

PRIvACy POLICy 
When you agree to the Terms of Use by sending an MOU 
or NOI, your contact information will be entered into a data-
base. You will receive notification when there are updates 
and/or new materials. You will have the opportunity to opt 
in to receive periodic blog posts and newsletters via email. 
Our Commitment to Program Users: We will not sell, 
share or trade names, contact, or personal information 
with any other entity, nor send mailings to our donors on 
behalf of other organizations. 
This policy applies to all information received by The “I Love 
U Guys” Foundation, both online and offline, as well as any 
electronic, written, or oral communications. 
Please see our website for the full Privacy text. 
ONE dEMANd 
The protocol also carries an obligation. Kids and teens are 
smart. An implicit part of the SRP is that authorities and 
school personnel tell students what’s going on. 
Certainly temper it at the elementary school level, but mid-
dle schoolers and older need accurate information for the 
greatest survivability, and to minimize panic and assist re-
covery. 
Note: Student training includes preparation for some al-
ternative methods during a tactical response but reinforces 
deference to local law enforcement. 

SRP K12 2021 | Standard Response Protocol | Version 3.0 | 05/04/2020                                                                                              Page 9 of 33

STANDARD
RESPONSE PROTOCOL®



Page 10 of <<

IntRoductIon 
This document outlines The Standard Response Protocol 
(SRP) and offers guidance on incorporating this protocol 
into a school safety plan for critical incident response within 
individual schools in a school district. 

The intent of this document is to 
provide basic guidance with re-
spect for local conditions and au-
thorities. The only mandate pre -
sented is that districts, agencies 
and departments retain the 
“Terms of Art, which are actions,” 
and “Directives” defined by this 

protocol. 
The SRP is not a replacement for any school safety plan 
or program. It is simply a classroom response enhance-
ment for critical incidents, designed to provide consistent, 
clear, shared language and actions among all students, 
staff and first responders. 
As a standard, SRP is being adopted by emergency man-
agers, law enforcement, school and district administrators 
and emergency medical services across the country. Hun-
dreds of agencies have evaluated the it and recommended 
the SRP to thousands of schools across the US and 
Canada. 
New materials and updates can be found online at 
http://iloveuguys.org. 
A cRItIcAl look 
Be prepared to look at existing plans with a critical eye, as 
often they can be described as a “Directive” of a certain 
“Term of Art.” For example, conducting a fire drill is prac-
ticing a specific type of evacuation and the actions per-
formed are similar in all evacuation scenarios. It makes 
sense to teach and train broader evacuation techniques 
while testing or practicing a more specific directive, like 
evacuating to the parking lot due to a fire.

tIme BARRIeRS 
Time barriers or measures taken beforehand to ‘harden 
the structure’ can be an invaluable asset to safety; not 
only for staff and students, but also visitors to a campus 
who expect a friendly and secure environment. 
Time barriers are best described as a physical barrier that 
slows down the entry into, or movement through, a facility. 
Any additional delay allows trained persons to take further 
protective action and gives first responders more time to 
arrive. 
An example of a time barrier is making the exterior doors 
of a building automatically lock, and could include installing 
a film on glass door panels to prevent them from shattering, 
thereby delaying an intruder’s attempt to break into the 
premises. 
Finally, the most powerful time barrier in an active assailant 
event is a locked classroom door. The Sandy Hook Advi-
sory Commission Report* says this: 

“the testimony and 
other evidence 
presented to the 
commission reveals 
that there has never 
been an event in 
which an active 
shooter breached a 
locked classroom 
door.” 

In Foundation investigations of past school shootings where 
life was lost behind a locked classroom door, some edge 
cases were revealed. The perpetrator in the Red Lake, 
MN incident gained entry into the classroom by breaking 
through the side panel window next to the classroom door. 
In the Platte Canyon hostage incident, the perpetrator was 
already in the room when Jeffco Regional SWAT explosively 
breached the classroom door. At Marjory Stoneman Dou-
glas High School, shots were fired through glass panels in 
doors, but the perpetrator never entered any classrooms. 

*FINAL REPORT OF THE SANDY HOOK ADVISORY COMMISSION 

Presented to Governor Dannel P. Malloy State of Connecticut 

March 6, 2015 

Document page 238 - Appendix A-I.1

STANDARD
RESPONSE PROTOCOL®

“SRP is not a 
replacement... 
it’s an 
enhancement to 
your existing 
safety plans.”



Before You Begin 
Districts and schools typically have a comprehensive safety 
program established and executed by a dedicated team 
of safety or security personnel. That same Safety Team 
should be responsible for incorporating the SRP into the 
safety plan. Including staff, students and a counselor or 
nurse on the Safety Team can greatly increase the buy-in 
and participation from all campus safety stakeholders. 
If it was not done during the development of the existing 
safety plan it is highly encouraged that, while incorporating 
the SRP, the safety team establish contact with local emer-
gency services and law enforcement officials as they can 
help ensure safety plans will not conflict with existing local 
emergency services protocols. 
The STandard reSponSe proTocol 
A critical ingredient in the safe school recipe is the uniform 
classroom response to an incident at school. Weather 
events, fires, accidents, intruders and other threats to stu-
dent safety are scenarios that are planned and trained for 
by school and district administration and staff. 
Historically, schools have taken a scenario-based approach 
to respond to hazards and threats. It’s not uncommon to 
find a stapled sheaf of papers or tabbed binder in a 
teacher’s desk that describes a variety of things that might 
happen, and the specific response to each event. 
Srp iS acTion BaSed 
The Standard Response Protocol is based not on individual 
scenarios but on the response to any given scenario. Like 
the Incident Command System (ICS), SRP demands a 
specific vocabulary but also allows for great flexibility. The 
premise is simple: there are five specific actions that can 
be performed during an incident. When communicating 
these actions, the action is labeled with a “Term of Art” 
and is then followed by a “Directive.” Execution of the ac-
tion is performed by active participants, including students, 
staff, teachers and first responders. 

 hold is followed by “In your Room or Area. Clear 1.
the Halls” and is the protocol used when the 
hallways need to be kept clear of people.  

 Secure is followed by “Get Inside, Lock Outside 2.
Doors” and is the protocol used to safeguard 
students and staff within the building. 

 lockdown is followed by “Locks, Lights, Out of 3.
Sight” and is the protocol used to secure 
individual rooms and keep students quiet and in 
place. 

 evacuate may be followed by a location, and is 4.
the protocol used to move students and staff from 
one location to a different location in or out of the 
building. 

 Shelter is always followed by the hazard and a 5.
safety strategy and is the protocol for group and 
self protection. 

These specific actions can act as both a verb and a noun. 
If the action is Lockdown, it would be announced on public 
address as “Lockdown! Locks, Lights, Out of Sight.” Com-
munication to local responders would then be “We are 
under Lockdown.” 

acTionS 
Each response has specific student and staff actions. The 
Evacuate response might be followed by a location: “Evac-
uate to the Bus Zone.” Responses can also be chained. 
For instance, “Evacuate to Hallway. Shelter for Earthquake. 
Drop, Cover and Hold.” 
BenefiTS 
The benefits of SRP become quickly apparent. By stan-
dardizing the vocabulary, all stakeholders can understand 
the response and status of the event. For students, this 
provides continuity of expectations and actions throughout 
their educational career. For teachers, this becomes a sim-
pler process to train and drill. For first responders, the 
common vocabulary and protocols establish a greater pre-
dictability that persists through the duration of an incident. 
Parents can easily understand the practices and can rein-
force the protocol. Additionally, this protocol enables rapid 
response determination when an unforeseen event oc-
curs. 
The protocol also allows for a more predictable series of 
actions as an event unfolds. An intruder event may start 
as a Lockdown, but as the intruder is isolated, first re-
sponders would assist as parts of the school go to an 
“Evacuate to the gym and Lockdown,” and later “Evacuate 
to the bus zone.” 
Secure vS. lockdown 
The differentiation between Secure and Lockdown is a 
critical element in SRP. Secure recovers people from out-
side the building, secures the building perimeter and locks 
all exterior doors. This would be implemented when there 
is a threat or hazard outside of the building. Criminal activity, 
dangerous events in the community, or even a vicious dog 
on the playground would be examples of a Secure re-
sponse. While the Secure response encourages greater 
staff situational awareness, it allows for educational prac-
tices to continue with little classroom interruption or dis-
traction. 
Lockdown is a classroom-based protocol that requires 
locking the classroom door, turning off the lights and plac-
ing students out of sight of any corridor windows. Student 
action during Lockdown is to remain quiet. It does not 
mandate locking exterior doors for a few reasons: risk is 
increased to students or staff in exposed areas attempting 
to lock the doors, and locking exterior doors inhibits entry 
of first responders and increases risk as responders at-
tempt to breach doors. If the doors are already locked, 
leave them alone. 
Be aware that situations can change quickly. Depending 
on what’s happening, a Lockdown might change to a Se-
cure condition, or the Secure condition evolves to Lock-
down. Refer to the FAQs on page 30. 
TacTical reSponSeS 
SRP also acknowledges that some school incidents involve 
a tactical response from law enforcement, and suggests 
consultation with local law enforcement regarding expec-
tations and actions.

SRP K12 2021 | Standard Response Protocol | Version 3.0 | 05/04/2020                                                                                            Page 11 of 33



Page 12 of 33

Protocol Details summary 
This section of the guidance defines conditions, actions, 
responsibilities and other aspects of preparing and incor-
porating The Standard Response Protocol within a school 
or district safety plan. 

Prerequisites:  
Nims aND ics 
In order to coordinate the use of the SRP in district plans, 
it is highly recommended that key individuals within the 
district and those with a role in district/campus emergency 
operations, complete the following courses through FEMA. 

IS 100.C: Introduction to the Incident Command 1.
System 
IS-700.B: An Introduction to the National 2.
Incident Management System 
IS 362.A: Multihazard Emergency Planning for 3.
Schools 

These courses are available online at no cost using the in-
ternet at http://training.fema.gov. Anticipate one to three 
hours per course to successfully achieve certification. The 
courses are offered at no charge. Please note: The “I Love 
U Guys” Foundation is not affiliated with FEMA. 

resources aND creatiNG 
relatioNsHiPs 
Throughout this book, you’ll see quite a few suggestions 
to contact your local or regional responders, whether it’s 
law enforcement, emergency services or fire departments. 
Communication with these local resources is essential.  
In most areas, schools are the largest population centers 
during a school day, so it makes sense to utilize the advice 
and services those agencies provide. Additionally, some 
county emergency managers are equipped to assist with 
your safety planning. Some school districts are able to en-
gage with their regional Department of Homeland Security 
for training resources. 
Take a look around your county and state and see what’s  
available. 
If you would like to speak with other schools or districts 
prior to utilizing the Standard Response Protocol, contact  
The “ I Love U Guys” Foundation (info@iloveuguys.org) 
and we may be able to connect you with a school or dis-
trict near you that has a similar profile and similar chal-
lenges. 
Doors, locks aND stress 
A consistent observation by first responders is that human 
beings have difficulty completing even routine tasks when 
they are under stress. The otherwise simple task of locking 
the classroom door may become extremely difficult for a 
teacher who has just heard a Lockdown order. Elevated 
adrenaline levels may result in the loss of fine motor skills, 
which can impede an act as normal as inserting a key to 
lock a door. 
Keeping classroom doors locked during instruction has 
proven to be a time barrier. While this may create an in-
convenience if students are late or need to re-enter class-
room for other reasons, it provides an essential layer of 
protection against intruders.  
talk to tHe Fire marsHal 
It’s important to discuss classroom security options and 
modification with local fire authorities. Some will allow a 
locked classroom door to be propped open during the 
school day, while some will not. Variances in local Fire 
Codes and application will help determine the options for 
your schools.  

STANDARD
RESPONSE PROTOCOL®



MeMoranda of Understanding  
Establishing a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) 

and/or Mutual Aid Agreement (MAA) between responding 

agencies and local resources are critical. It is insufficient 

to rely on a conversation or handshake between entities 

who would respond to an incident or provide resources 

during an emergency.  

Written agreements such as MOUs and MAAs are impor-

tant to emergency operation plans and should be reviewed 

and updated regularly. 

An SRP-focused Sample MOU between a School District 

and Law Enforcement/Fire/EMS was created by The “I 

Love U Guys” Foundation in order to guide schools in cre-

ating effective MOU’s with local first responders. This can 

be downloaded from The “I Love U Guys” Foundation’s 

website. 

ClassrooM Posters 
Part of a school’s commitment to SRP is displaying posters 

in classrooms, libraries, cafeterias, gymnasiums, auditori-

ums and hallways. 

The Foundation recognizes that this commitment may im-

pact printing budgets and consequently asks that schools 

or districts commit to a time frame when poster installation 

can be completed. 

Two sizes of posters are available in English and Spanish 

at http://iloveuguys.org at no charge. 

training resoUrCes 
While the SRP materials may be downloaded and imple-

mented at no cost, The Foundation can provide on-site or 

online training for a cost, and has worked with a number 

of organizations in providing training workshops. 

Send training inquiries to training@iloveuguys.org.  

SRP K12 2021 | Standard Response Protocol | Version 3.0 | 05/04/2020                                                                                            Page 13 of 33

STUDENTS ADULTS
Return to inside of building 
Do business as usual 

Bring everyone indoors 
Lock outside doors 
Increase situational awareness  
Account for students and adults 
Do business as usual

SECURE! 
Get inside. Lock outside doors.

STUDENTS ADULTS
Clear the hallways and remain in room or 
area until the “All Clear” is announced 

Do business as usual 

Close and lock door 
Account for students and adults 
Do business as usual

HOLD! In your room or area. Clear the halls.

IN AN EMERGENCY 
TAKE ACTION

STUDENTS ADULTS
Leave stuff behind if required to 
If possible, bring your phone 
Follow instructions 

Lead students to Evacuation location 
Account for students and adults  
Notify if missing, extra or injured students 
or adults

STUDENTS ADULTS
Move away from sight 
Maintain silence 
Do not open the door 

Recover students from hallway if possible 
Lock the classroom door 
Turn out the lights  
Move away from sight 
Maintain silence 
Do not open the door 
Prepare to evade or defend 

LOCKDOWN! Locks, lights, out of sight.

EVACUATE! (A location may be specified)

SHELTER! Hazard and safety strategy. 

© Copyright 2009-2020, All Rights Reserved. The “I Love U Guys” Foundation. Conifer, CO. The Standard Response Protocol and Logo are Trademarks of The “I Love U 
Guys” Foundation and may be registered in certain jurisdictions. This material may be duplicated for distribution per “SRP Terms of Use”. SRP TxSSC 2021 Poster_EN |  
V 4.0 | Revised: 07/14/2020 | http://iloveuguys.org

STUDENTS ADULTS
Use appropriate safety strategy 
for the hazard

Lead safety strategy 
Account for students and adults 
Notify if missing, extra or injured students 
or adults

Hazard Safety Strategy 
Tornado	 Evacuate to shelter area 
Hazmat	 Seal the room 
Earthquake	 Drop, cover and hold 
Tsunami	 Get to high ground ~ Ji] w ~, RESPONSE 



CommuniCation 
Every school’s Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) should 
contain a section for communicating both internally and 
externally during a crisis situation.  
In any type of event, clear and well-planned communication 
is essential. Depending on the type of incident, you might 
have only minutes to prepare a statement and communi-
cate it to the appropriate people. 
Primarily, give the staff and students as much information 
as possible so they can make informed decisions about 
their actions. If little is known about the situation, tell them 
that. 
Communication to parents and guardians is critical as well. 
It’s likely that a number of them will show up at the school 
no matter what’s going on, so letting them know what’s 
happening and what to do is a must. 
inCiDEnt CommanD 
When your Safety Team is creating an EOP, they’ll include 
some level of the Incident Command System (ICS), which 
is the hierarchy of authority and responsibilities. One role 
in ICS is the Public Information Officer (PIO) and this role 
can be used on a daily basis.  
Having a Communication Team in your school and/or dis-
trict is good practice in order to keep lines of communica-
tion ongoing for everyday events and activities.  
Many school districts have a full time Communication/PIO 
supervisor. Within a school, there is usually at least one 
person who manages the low level event and activity com-
munication along with their primary job.  
High level event information should be handled by a com-
petent and well versed individual who provides information 
that is clear, concise, and complete enough in content to 
further the mission.  
Create a policy for protocol and content for each commu-
nication channel to maintain consistency. 
ChannEls 
Decide which methods of communication are the best fit 
for your community. This is reliant on your community’s in-
ternet bandwidth, cell phone service and other preferences. 
Whatever you choose needs to be reliable, fast, and reach 
a high percentage of the community members. Document 
who on the Communication Team has access to update 
each channel. 
Also, think about which channels are used regularly for 
day to day messaging, like emails, and consider using al-
ternate methods for emergencies such as text and phone, 
which may not be used as frequently. Doing so will alert 

the recipients that this is not the regular, daily email, but 
something more  important. 
ContaCts 
After determining the best channels to use, decide who 
you will need to communicate with. Certainly staff and 
parents, but also students depending on the age group. 
Asking parents to keep their contact information updated 
is critical. Add responders and dispatchers as needed. 
timE 
For certain incidents there are only a few minutes to pre-
pare. If Law Enforcement or Fire is involved, people will 
hear about an incident quickly. Reaching your stakeholders 
immediately with any type of message acknowledging the 
incident is essential. Have some basic message formats 
approved and ready to use. 
ContEnt 
Not every situation needs immediate text messages and 
emails, so it’s important to determine what is warranted 
and when. Less urgent situations—a school cancellation 
with ample notice, for example—might warrant an email, 
mass phone message and website update, whereas an 
unexpectedly early dismissal requires mass phone calls 
and text messages to ensure that information is received 
quickly. 
An initial message can be as simple as stating that some-
thing has happened, and telling stakeholders where to find 
updates. 
Include only the factual information you have; do not spec-
ulate. The recipients of your outgoing messages must be 
able to trust in the validity of the content. 
Any situation that requires emergency communication for 
an incident will also require a follow-up.  
PREPaRation 
A tabletop exercise is a start; basically it’s a brainstorming 
session. Your Communication Team can talk through pos-
sible scenarios and formulate messaging accordingly. They 
must think about what immediate information is necessary, 
how to follow up, and who they will need to speak with/fol-
low to receive trusted updates. 
Use the 27/9/< rule during message preparation. This is a 
very basic recommendation and suggests using a total of 
27 words, which can be spoken in about 9 seconds, con-
taining three or fewer key points.  
The team should pre-script some basic messages that 
may be sent out, with blank spaces for details like time 
and date. Having these pre-approved and available will 
aid the team later if they’re under stress or time constraints. 

Page 14 of <<

STANDARD
RESPONSE PROTOCOL®



SRP K12 2021 | Standard Response Protocol | Version 3.0 | 05/04/2020                                                                                            Page 15 of 33

Hold 
In YouR Room oR AReA.  
CleAR tHe HAlls 
There may be situations that require students to remain in 
their classrooms. For example, an altercation in the hallway 
may require keeping students out of the halls until it is re-
solved. A medical issue may require only one area to be 
cleared, with halls still open in case outside medical assis-
tance is required. 
There may be a need for students who are not in a class-
room to proceed to an area where they can be supervised 
and remain safe. 
PublIC AddRess 
The public address for Hold is: “Hold in your room or area. 
Clear the Halls.” and is repeated twice each time the public 
address is performed. There may be a need to add direc-
tives for students that are not in a classroom, at lunch or 
some other location where they should remain until the 
hold is lifted. 
“Hold in your room or area. Clear the Halls. 
 Hold in your room or area. Clear the Halls.”  
PublIC AddRess - ReleAse 
A Hold can be released by Public Address. 
“The Hold is released. All Clear. 
 The Hold is released. All Clear.” 
InCIdent CommAnd sYstem 
The School Incident Command System should be initi-
ated. 
ACtIons 
Students and teachers are to remain in their classroom or 
area, even if there is a scheduled class change, until the 
all clear is announced. 
Students and staff in common areas, like a cafeteria or a 
gym, may be asked to remain in those areas or move to 
adjoining areas like a locker room. 
Students and staff outside of the building should remain 
outside unless administration directs otherwise. 
It is suggested that prior to locking the classroom door,  
teachers should rapidly sweep the hallway for nearby stu-
dents. Additionally, teachers should take attendance, note 
the time, and conduct business as usual.  
In a high school with an open campus policy, communicate 
as much detail as possible to students who are temporarily 
off campus. 
 

ResPonsIbIlItY 
Typically an administrator is responsible for initiating a Hold, 
however anyone should be able to call for a Hold if they 
observe something happening that would require this ac-
tion. 
PRePARAtIon 
Student, teacher, and administrator training. 
dRIlls  
Hold should be drilled at least once a year, or as mandated 
by state requirements. 
ContIngenCIes 
Students are trained that if they are not in a classroom 
they may be asked to identify the nearest classroom and 
join that class for the duration of the Hold. 
exAmPles of Hold CondItIons 
The following are some examples of when a school might 
initiate a Hold: 

An altercation in a hallway; •
A medical issue that need attention; •
Unfinished maintenance operation in a common area •
during class changes. 

InteRnAl/PRInCIPAl messAgIng 
To students and staff during an incident. 
Example Situation: Medical Emergency 
“Students and staff, please Hold in the cafeteria or your 
room. We’re attending to a medical situation near the of-
fice.” 
“Students and staff, the Hold is released. All clear. 
Thank you for your assistance with making this Hold work 
smoothly.” 
messAgIng to PARents 
To parent and community after a Hold event 
Example Situation: Medical Emergency 
“Today at (time of day), there was a limited First Aid event 
in the building which required the Hold action to be initiated. 
Hallways were cleared and the event was handled 
promptly. Questions can be directed to (PIO) 
jdoe@school.org”  

Hold 
 In Your Room or Area



Page 16 of <<

Secure 
Get InSIDe, LOck OutSIDe DOOrS. 
The Secure Protocol is called when there is a threat or 
hazard outside of the school building. Whether it's due to 
violence or criminal activity in the immediate neighborhood, 
or a dangerous animal in the playground, Secure uses the 
security of the physical facility to act as protection. 
PubLIc ADDreSS 
The public address for Secure is: “Secure! Get Inside. Lock 
outside doors” and is repeated twice each time the public 
address is performed. 
“Secure! Get Inside, Lock outside doors.  
 Secure! Get Inside, Lock outside doors.” 
ActIOnS 
The Secure Protocol demands bringing people into a se-
cure building, and locking all outside access points. 
Where possible, classroom activities would continue unin-
terrupted. Classes being held outside would return to the 
building and, if possible, continue inside the building. 
There may be occasions when students expect to be able 
to leave the building - end of classes, job commitment, 
etc. Depending on the condition, this may have to be de-
layed until the area is safe. 
During the training period it should be emphasized to stu-
dents as well as their parents that they may be inconve-
nienced by these directives, but their cooperation is im-
portant to ensure their safety. 
cOntrOLLeD reLeASe 
Circumstances where a threat is perceived but not directly 
evident may warrant a Controlled Release. During a Con-
trolled Release, parents or guardians may be asked to 
pick up students rather than have them walk home. Buses 
may run as normal, but increased monitoring of the bus 
area would occur. There may be additional law enforcement 
presence. 
MOnItOreD entrY 
When there is a perceived threat but it’s not immediate, 
anyone entering the building is more closely monitored, 
especially during after-school gatherings. Students chang-
ing classes between buildings or going to the parking lot 
might be escorted with a heightened awareness. 
IncIDent cOMMAnD SYSteM 
The School Incident Command System should be initi-
ated. 
reSPOnSIbILItY 
During a Secure event, administration or staff may be re-
quired to lock exterior access points. Staff members as-
signed "Primary Responsibility" for a "Secure Zone" would 

follow the designated protocol during a drill as well. These 
areas may include doorways, windows, loading docks, 
and fire escape ladder access points. The assigned staff 
is designated as having "Secure Duty." 
A person should also be assigned "Secondary Responsi-
bility" for Secure Duty in the event the person with Primary 
Responsibility is absent or unable to perform the protocol. 
Assign someone to attach the Secure posters (shown on 
the right), outfacing, to building entry doors to alert potential 
visitors of the Secure condition.  
rePOrteD bY 
Secure is typically reported by emergency dispatch to the 
school office. Office staff then invokes the public address 
and informs administration. 
It may also be reported by students, staff or teachers if a 
threat is directly observed outside of the building. 
PrePArAtIOn 
Identification of perimeter access points that must be 
locked in a Secure event defines the Perimeter. In the 
event a perimeter cannot be secured, identify areas within 
each building that can be secured. 
Secure Zones - areas of a school or campus with exterior 
access points - should be established and protocols de-
veloped to ensure that those on “Secure Duty” attend to 
all areas in their zone.  
Preparation includes identification of staff with Primary and 
Secondary responsibility and assignment of these duties. 
DrILLS 
Secure drills should be performed at least twice a year, or 
as mandated by state requirements. At least one should 
be performed while outdoor activities are in progress. 
cOntInGencIeS 
There may be physical attributes to the campus that man-
date special handling of a Secure event. An example would 
be a campus where modular buildings are present. If the 
modular building cannot be secured, it may be best for 
students to Evacuate to the main building rather than going 
to Secure in the modular building. Listen for specific addi-
tional directives. 
If the school is a distributed campus (multiple permanent 
buildings), they will have to consider what their perimeter 
is. In a perceived and indirect threat, they may decide that 
extra supervision for class changes between buildings is 
sufficient and appropriate. 
If, during a Secure event, an additional hazard manifests 
(i.e.: fire, flood, hazmat), then additional directives will be 
given for the appropriate response. 

Secure 
Get Inside, Lock Outside Doors.II 



ExamplEs of sEcurE conditions 
The following are some examples of when a school or 

emergency dispatch might call for Secure Protocol. 

Unknown or unauthorized person on the grounds •
Dangerous animal on school grounds •
Criminal activity in area •
Planned police activity in the neighborhood •

mEdia mEssaging 
To the community during an event. 

Example Situation: Criminal Activity Nearby 

If your school has been notified by law enforcement that 

there’s activity in the area, you might use this type of mes-

sage: 

"We have been advised there is police activity in the area 

of (location). Staff and students are accounted for and 

the Secure Protocol has been established. Updates to fol-

low."  

dispatch mEssaging 
To the school prior to this occurring. 

Example Situation: Planned Warrant Service Notification 

“Be advised there is a planned police activity today (date), 

sometime between (time range), in the area of (neigh-
borhood or nearby intersection). We request the schools 

in the area place their campuses in the Secure protocol 

during this event. Be advised there may be an increased 

Law Enforcement presence in the area and the potential 

of loud noises. We will notify you when the event has con-

cluded.” 

WhEn... thEn... 
The following scenario happened in a school district, and 

is a good topic of discussion during tabletop exercises. 

Example: Shots are fired in the neighborhood 

In this event, the school day had ended at a neighborhood 

middle school. Some students were walking home, some 

were on buses, and some were on campus for after-school 

sports. When the shots were fired, who was in charge of 

the communication? 

Law Enforcement needed to alert the school. •
The school was responsible for sending an alert to •
students/parents/guardians. 

Students who were still on campus were brought in-•
side, and the campus enacted the Secure Protocol. 

Law Enforcement increased patrols in the neighbor-•
hood as they sought the source of the gunfire.  

Dispatch maintained communication with the •
school’s Communication Team.

SRP K12 2021 | Standard Response Protocol | Version 3.0 | 05/04/2020                                                                                            Page 17 of 33

© Copyright 2009-2020, All Rights Reserved. The “I Love U Guys” Foundation. Conifer, CO. The Standard Response Protocol and Logo are 
Trademarks of The “I Love U Guys” Foundation and may be registered in certain j04/16ictions. This material may be duplicated for distribution 
per “SRP Terms of Use”. SRP-K12 Secure Door Poster_EN-SP | V 3.0 | Revised: 04/31/2020

SCHOOL IS SECURED 
NO ONE IN OR OUT

ESCUELA BAJO PROTECCIÓN 
NADIE PUEDE ENTRAR

SCHOOL IS SECURED 
MONITORED ENTRY AND CONTROLLED RELEASE

ESCUELA BAJO PROTECCIÓN 
ENTRADA VIGILADA Y SALIDA CONTROLADA

© Copyright 2009-2020, All Rights Reserved. The “I Love U Guys” Foundation. Conifer, CO. The Standard Response Protocol and Logo are 
Trademarks of The “I Love U Guys” Foundation and may be registered in certain j04/16ictions. This material may be duplicated for distribution 
per “SRP Terms of Use”. SRP-K12 Secure Monitored Door Poster_EN-SP | V 3.0 | Revised: 04/31/2020

~ ~\~ 
~ Sl»,IDARD 

RESPONSE PROTOCOL 

(j~] 
SESPONSE PROTOCOL 



Page 18 of <<

Lockdown 
LockS, LightS, out of Sight 
Lockdown is called when there is a threat or hazard inside 
the school building. From parental custody disputes to in-
truders to an active assailant, Lockdown uses classroom 
and school security actions to protect students and staff 
from the threat. 
PubLic AddreSS 
The public address for Lockdown is: “Lockdown! Locks, 
Lights, Out of Sight!” and is repeated twice each time the 
public address is performed. 
“Lockdown! Locks, Lights, Out of Sight!  
Lockdown! Locks, Lights, Out of Sight!” 
ActionS 
The Lockdown protocol demands locking individual class-
room doors, offices and other securable areas, moving 
occupants out of line of sight of corridor windows, turning 
off lights to make the room seem unoccupied, and having 
occupants maintain silence. 
There is no call to action to lock the building’s exterior ac-
cess points. Rather, the protocol advises leaving the 
perimeter as is. The reasoning is simple - sending staff to 
lock outside doors exposes them to unnecessary risk and 
inhibits first responders’ entry into the building. If the exte-
rior doors are already locked, leave them locked but do 
have a conversation with your local responders so they 
understand and can gain access during a Lockdown. The 
best option is to have the ability to lock doors remotely. 
Teacher, staff and student training reinforces the practice 
of not opening the classroom door once in Lockdown. No 
indication of occupancy should be revealed until first re-
sponders open the door. 
If the location of the threat is apparent and people do not 
have the option to get behind a door, it is appropriate to 
self-evacuate away from the threat. 
incident commAnd SyStem 
The School Incident Command System should be initiated. 
reSPonSibiLity 
The classroom teacher is responsible for implementing 
their classroom Lockdown. If it is safe to do so, the teacher 
should gather students into the classroom prior to locking 
door. The teacher should lock all classroom access points 
and facilitate moving occupants out of sight. 
rePorted by 
When there is a life safety threat on campus, a Lockdown 
should be immediately initiated by any student or staff 
member. Initiating the Lockdown may happen through var-
ious methods, or a combination of methods, depending 

on the procedures and alert systems utilized by each 
school and district. Lockdown alerts may be made by 
word of mouth, phone, radio systems, intercom, panic 
buttons, or more advanced forms of technology. Plan the 
communication method in advance to set expectations 
for students and staff. Regardless of the method(s) of no-
tification, the initiation of a Lockdown should be consistent, 
simple and swift, and include immediate notification of 
school administration and local law enforcement agencies.  
PrePArAtion 
Identification of classroom access points that must be 
locked in the event of a Lockdown is essential preparation. 
These may include doorways, windows, loading docks, 
and fire escape ladder access points. 
A “safe zone” should also be identified within the classroom 
that is out of sight of the corridor window. Teachers and 
students should be trained to not open the classroom 
door, leaving a first responder, school safety team member 
or school administrator to unlock it. 
Students, staff and teachers should be advised that a 
Lockdown may persist for several hours, and during an 
incident silence is recommended. 
driLLS 
Lockdown drills should be performed at least twice a year, 
or as mandated by state requirements. If possible one of 
these drills should be performed with local law enforcement 
personnel participation. At a minimum, law enforcement 
participation in the drill should occur no less than once 
every two years. 
For more information, see the Lockdown Drills section of 
this book. 
contingencieS 
Students and staff who are outside of classrooms when a 
Lockdown is announced should try to get into the closest 
available classroom, or room with door that can be se-
cured. In the event someone cannot get into a room before 
doors are locked, they should be instructed about other 
options. In this situation, students and staff should be 
trained to hide or even evacuate themselves away from 
the building or area. Students and staff should receive 
training on where to go if they self-evacuate so they can 
be safe and accounted for. 
If, during a Lockdown, an additional hazard manifests 
inside the school such as a fire, flood, or hazmat incident, 
then situational decisions must be made. There should be 
discussions about reacting to a fire alarm if it is activated 
during a Lockdown. This may require following additional 
directives of the SRP.  

Lockdown 
 Locks, Lights, out of Sight



Cell Phones 
It is not uncommon for school administrators to ban cell 
phone use during a Lockdown. Parent instincts may be at 
odds with that ban. Often, one of the first things a parent 
will do when there is a crisis in the school is text their 
child. 
In evaluating actual Lockdown events, the initial crisis may 
only take minutes. After the threat is mitigated, Law En-
forcement typically clears the school one classroom at a 
time. This process may take significant time. During this 
time, both parents and students can reduce stress through 
text communications. This also provides a classroom man-
agement strategy. Selecting three or four students at time, 
a teacher may ask students to text their parents with a 
message like this: “We’re in Lockdown. I’m okay and I’ll 
update you every 5 minutes.” Certainly, if a threat is immi-
nent, texting would be discouraged. 
There is also an opportunity to ask the students to text 
their parents with crafted messages as an event unfolds. 
For example, “Pick me up at Lincoln Elementary in one 
hour. Bring your ID,” might be recommended for student-
parent reunification. 
It may also be beneficial to have students turn off both Wi-
Fi and cellular data services. This frees up bandwidth for 
first responders, while still allowing SMS text messaging.  
examPles of loCkdoWn Conditions 
The following are a few examples of when a school or 
emergency dispatch might call for a Lockdown. 

Dangerous animal within school building •
Intruder •
Angry or violent parent or student •
Report of a weapon •
Active assailant •

red Card/Green Card 
Red Card/Green Cards should NOT be used for a Lock-
down. Based on a number of tactical assessments, the 
overwhelming consensus is that this practice provides in-
formation to an armed intruder that there are potential tar-
gets in that room. 

media messaGinG 
To community after an event. 
Example Situation: Intruder in the School 
“Today at (time of day), there was an individual observed 
entering (school name). The individual was later identified 
as a non-custodial parent of a student at (school name). 
School officials placed the school on Lockdown and noti-
fied the police of the situation. The individual was not able 
to gain access to any students at the school and the police 
are investigating the situation.” 

disPatCh 
To responding officers during an event. 
Example Situation: Angry/Violent Parent at School 
“(Dispatched units) there is a disturbance at (school 
name). A parent (identity if known, physical description) 
on scene is screaming, throwing items, and threatening 
staff in the office area of the school. The reporting party 
advised the school has been placed on Lockdown. (time 
stamp).” 

laW enforCement messaGinG 
To community/media after event. 
Example Situation: Weapon Report 
“On (date) at (time of day), (LE Agency) received the re-
port of a student who had brought a weapon to (school 
name) and was allegedly armed in an otherwise unoccu-
pied classroom. School officials advised the remainder of 
the school had been placed on Lockdown. Upon arrival, 
officers were able to make contact with the student and 
placed the student into custody without incident. The in-
vestigation is ongoing.”

SRP K12 2021 | Standard Response Protocol | Version 3.0 | 05/04/2020                                                                                            Page 19 of 33

the duration of a loCkdoWn 
A question that occasionally arises is “How long does it 
take to release a Lockdown?” The answer is, “That de-
pends, but probably longer than you want to hear.”  
The Foundation has heard accounts of a Lockdown 
lasting for hours. In one case - a weapon report - the 
school was in Lockdown for over three hours. In another 
- an active assailant in the building - it took about an 
hour after the issue was resolved for law enforcement 
to clear the classrooms. 

What about Cell Phones? 
One of the occasionally heated conversations is about 
cell phone usage. If the current trends continue, there 
will be a point in the future where nearly every student 
will have a communication device.  
There may be cases where law enforcement will ask 
students to leave their phones behind. A bomb threat 
for example.  
In many cases, having the ability to craft messages for 
students to send their parents, or for students to call 
their parents, can be of tremendous value.  
The Foundation freely admits to a bias though. Take just 
a moment and think of the origination of the Foundation. 
(See page 8.) 



Page 20 of <<

EvacuatE 
to a Location 
Evacuate is called when there is a need to move people 
from one location to another. 
Most often, evacuations will be necessary when there’s a  
heating/ventilation system failure, nearby gas leak, or bomb 
threat. In those cases, people will  be allowed to bring 
their personal items with them. An evacuation drill is very 
similar to a fire drill.  
PubLic addrEss 
The public address for Evacuate is: “Evacuate! To a Loca-
tion” and is repeated twice each time the public address 
is performed. For instance, “Evacuate! To the Flag Pole.” 
“Evacuate! To a location.  
Evacuate! To a location.” 
actions 
The Evacuate Protocol demands students and staff move 
in an orderly fashion. 
incidEnt command systEm 
The School Incident Command System should be initiated. 
rEsPonsibiLity 
The classroom teacher or administrator is usually respon-
sible for initiating an evacuation. The directives or actions 
may vary for fire, bomb threat, or other emergency. Other 
directions may be invoked during an evacuation and stu-
dent and staff should be prepared to follow specific instruc-
tions given by staff or first responders. 
PrEParation 
Evacuation preparation involves the identification of facility  
evacuation routes, evacuation assembly points and evac-
uation sites, as well as student, teacher, and administrator 
training. An evacuation site usually becomes the reunifica-
tion site, so plan accordingly. Ideally choose an offsite 
evacuation facility that’s in walking distance and another 
father away from the school in case the hazard is in the im-
mediate area. Have an MOU in place with each site to out-
line expectations and responsibilities in advance. There is 
a sample MOU for this on The “I Love U Guys” website. 
Evacuation assEmbLy 
The Evacuation Assembly refers to gathering at the Evac-
uation Assembly Point(s). Teachers are instructed to take 
roll after arrival at the Evacuation Assembly Point(s).  
Schools with large populations might plan on having mul-
tiple, predetermined assembly points so everyone isn’t 
grouped together. 

driLLs  
Evacuation drills should be performed at least twice a year 
or as mandated by state law. Fire drills are often required 
regularly, and constitute a valid evacuation drill. 
incidEnt command systEm 
The School Incident Command System should be initiated. 
contingEnciEs 
Students are trained that if they are separated from their 
class during an evacuation, then joining another evacuation 
line is acceptable. They should be instructed to identify 
themselves to the teacher in their group after arriving at the 
Evacuation Site. 
rEd card/grEEn card/mEd card 
After taking roll, the Red/Green/Med Card system is em-
ployed for administrators or first responders to quickly, vi-
sually identify the status of the teachers’ classes. Teachers 
will hold up the Green card if they have all their students 
and are good to go. They hold up Red card if they are 
missing students, extra students or another problem, and 
use the Med card to indicate their need for some sort of 
medical attention. 
See the Materials Section for examples. 

intErnaL PrinciPaL / sro mEssaging 
To the students and staff. 
Example Situation: Possible Hazmat Situation in the 
School 
“Evacuate to your assembly point. Evacuate to your as-
sembly point. Please initiate evacuation procedures im-
mediately and meet at your assigned assembly point out-
side”  

mEdia mEssaging 
To the media/community after an event. 
Example Situation: Gas Leak 
“Today at (time of day) students and staff at (school 
name) were ordered to evacuate due to the report of the 
smell of natural gas in the area of the school. The students 
evacuated to (evacuation location) in order to be reunited 
with their parents/guardians. Officials say the natural gas 
odor was as a result of a gas line that was broken by a 
road crew at (location) and is currently being repaired. 
School will be back in session on its normal schedule to-
morrow.” 
 
 

EvacuatE 
 a Location may also be given

ttt 



SRP K12 2021 | Standard Response Protocol | Version 3.0 | 05/04/2020                                                                                            Page 21 of 33

Police led evAcuAtion 
In the rare situations where law enforcement is clearing 
classrooms and escorting students and staff out of the 
classroom and through the building, it is important to have 
provided advance instruction on what to expect. 
Public Address  
There may or may not be any public address notifying stu-
dents and staff that law enforcement is performing these 
actions. 
Actions 
As officers enter the classroom, students and staff must 
keep their hands visible and empty. It is unlikely that stu-
dents or staff may be able to bring backpacks, purses or 
any personal items with them during a Police Led Evacu-
ation. Students may be instructed to form a single file line 
and hold hands front and back, or students and staff may 
be asked to put their hands on their heads while evacuat-
ing.  
WhAt to exPect 
Prepare students and staff that during a Police Led Evac-
uation, officers may be loud, direct and commanding. Stu-
dents and staff may also be searched both in the 
classroom and again at the assembly area. 
emotionAl resPonsibility 
There is a new conversation occurring with law enforce-
ment regarding their role in post-event recovery. This is a 
growing area and warrants conversations between 
schools, districts, and agencies about how to keep stu-
dents safe, and reduce trauma that might be associated 
with a Police Led Evacuation. 
PrePArAtion 
Student, teacher, and administrator training. 
contingencies 
In an off-site evacuation to a reunification site, Incident 
Commanders should  consider leaving students and staff 
in their rooms until transportation arrives. Your team can 
also discuss communicating to classrooms that the threat 
has been minimized enough that they may relax and wait 
for evacuation. 
When it’s time, each room can be cleared directly to the 
buses in order to minimize trauma.  
It is recommended to avoid the scene of the incident when 
exiting. Transport directly to the Reunification Site. 
 

mediA messAging 
To the media/community after an event. 
Example Situation: Violent Event 
“On (date) at (time of day), (agency name) responded to 
(school name) in reference to (event type). Officers as-
sisted with safely escorting students and staff out of the 
school and to the Evacuation site where the (School Dis-
trict) was able to initiate the Reunification process.” 
disPAtch messAging 
To responding officers during an event. 
Example Situation: Police Led Evacuation 
“(Dispatched Units) respond to (school name) to assist 
with Evacuation of students and staff. Assistance is needed 
to accompany individuals out of the school and to the Se-
cure Assembly Area at (location). Respond to the Com-
mand Post for your assignment. (time stamp)” 
lAW enForcement messAging 
To responding officers during an event. 
Example Situation: Gas Leak 
(Police unit name) respond to (area near the school) to 
assist with evacuating students from (school name) be-
cause of gas smell in the building. Meet with (supervisor) 
for further information to assist with Evacuation and Re-
unification.  

Police led 
 evacuation After a lockdown



Page 22 of <<

Shelter  
Shelter is called when specific protective actions are 
needed based on a threat or hazard. Training should in-
clude response to threats such as tornado, earthquake, 
hazardous materials situation or other local threats. 
PublIc AddreSS 
The public address for shelter should include the hazard 
and the safety strategy. The public address is repeated 
twice each time the public address is performed. 
“Shelter! For a hazard. Using safety strategy.  
Shelter! For a hazard. Using safety strategy.” 
hAzArdS MAy Include 

Tornado •
Severe weather •
Wildfires •
Flooding •
Hazmat spill or release •
Earthquake •
Tsunami •

SAfety StrAtegIeS MAy Include 
Evacuate to shelter area •
Seal the room •
Drop, cover and hold •
Get to high ground •

ActIonS 
Collaboration with local responders, the National Weather 
Service, and other local, regional and state resources will 
help in developing specific actions for your district re-
sponse.  
IncIdent coMMAnd SySteM 
The School Incident Command System should be initiated. 
reSPonSIbIlIty 
Sheltering requires that all students and staff follow re-
sponse directives. Districts should have procedures for all 
foreseeable local hazards and threats which include provi-
sions for those individuals with access and functional 
needs.  
PrePArAtIon 
Identification and marking of facility shelter areas. 
drIllS 
Shelter safety strategies should be drilled at least twice a 
year, or as mandated by the state. 

Shelter - StAte the hAzArd And 
SAfety StrAtegy  
Using the Shelter Protocol and stating the hazard allows 
for understanding of the threat and the associated protec-
tive actions. Most often, the Shelter Protocol is utilized for 
tornadoes and other severe weather, in which case it 
would include the shelter location for students and staff, 
and what protective posture or action they should take. 
Sheltering for a hazardous materials spill or release is very 
different. In the case of a hazmat situation, students and 
staff would be directed to close their windows, shut down 
their heating and air conditioning units and seal windows 
and doors to preserve the good inside air while restricting 
the entry of any contaminated outside air. Listening to spe-
cific directives is critical to a successful emergency re-
sponse. 
PlAIn lAnguAge  
NIMS and ICS require the use of plain language. Codes 
and specific language that are not readily understood by 
the general public are no longer to be used. The SRP uses 
shared, plain, natural language between students, staff and 
first responders. If there are specific directives that need 
to be issued for a successful response in a school, those 
should be made clearly using plain language. There is 
nothing wrong with adding directives as to where to shel-
ter, or what protective actions should be used in the re-
sponse. 
cuStoMIzAtIon 
The classroom poster is sufficient for generic Shelter guid-
ance. The Foundation recognizes that localized hazards 
may need to be added to the poster.  For this reason, the 
Public Address poster is available in MS Word for cus-
tomization. 

Shelter 
State the hazard and Safety Strategy

About Shelter-In-PlAce 
There is a long tradition of using the term “Shelter-in-
place” for a variety of hazards. While still in common use, 
the SRP suggests simply stating the hazard and provid-
ing a safety strategy.  
A deep exploration of the FEMA website found over a 
dozen different scenarios where “Shelter-in-place” was 
advised. Two of the most common were for Tornado or 
Hazmat. Very different actions would be taken for those 
hazards. A single directive, “Shelter-in-place” doesn’t 
provide the necessary information. “Tornado! Get to the 
storm shelter! ” is more direct. 



SRP K12 2021 | Standard Response Protocol | Version 3.0 | 05/04/2020                                                                                            Page 23 of 33

srP overview wall Poster 
This K12 SRP overview wall poster was created for you to 
print and place on walls in order to remind everyone of the 
different SRP actions and allow teachers to start the con-
versation about SRP with their students. 
Placing Posters is an essential step in full implementation 
of the SRP. The poster should be displayed in every class-
room, near building entries, and the entrances to the cafe-
teria, auditorium and gym. The shelter hazards and safety 
strategies can be modified for local conditions. 
The poster is available in letter size (8.5 x 11”) and tabloid 
size (11 x 17”), in English and Spanish. 

note to Printers 
This material may be duplicated for distribution per “SRP 
Terms of Use,”which read as follows:  
Terms of Use: District/school is responsible for physical 
material production of any online resources provided by 
The Foundation. The District/school is not required to utilize 
printing services provided by The Foundation for production 
of support materials. 

What this means: You may print this material for them. 
Terms of Use: School District agrees to incorporate the 
SRP using the terms of art and the associated directives 
as defined in the Program Description. 
What this means: The school, district, agency or organi-
zation may place their logo and/or name on printed material 
to personalize it. They may not substantively change the 
wording or actions, except as it applies to hazards specific 
to their region. 
Printing the books 
Books have been laid out with a 5 pica (.83”) interior margin 
and a 4 pica (.63”) exterior margin to facilitate duplex print-
ing of the materials. Books can be finished using common 
bindery methods: perfect bind, comb bind, spiral bind, 
saddle stitch, or punch for a 3-ring binder. 
statUs Posters 
Letter-size posters for use to 
communicate the status of 
the school during drills or in-
cidents. 
These include posters for 
two levels of Secure condi-
tions, and a Lockdown Drill 
Poster. 
 

STUDENTS ADULTS
Return to inside of building 
Do business as usual 

Bring everyone indoors 
Lock outside doors 
Increase situational awareness  
Account for students and adults 
Do business as usual

SECURE! 
Get inside. Lock outside doors.

STUDENTS ADULTS
Clear the hallways and remain in room or 
area until the “All Clear” is announced 

Do business as usual 

Close and lock door 
Account for students and adults 
Do business as usual

HOLD! In your room or area. Clear the halls.

IN AN EMERGENCY 
TAKE ACTION

STUDENTS ADULTS
Leave stuff behind if required to 
If possible, bring your phone 
Follow instructions 

Lead students to Evacuation location 
Account for students and adults  
Notify if missing, extra or injured students 
or adults

STUDENTS ADULTS
Move away from sight 
Maintain silence 
Do not open the door 

Recover students from hallway if possible 
Lock the classroom door 
Turn out the lights  
Move away from sight 
Maintain silence 
Do not open the door 
Prepare to evade or defend 

LOCKDOWN! Locks, lights, out of sight.

EVACUATE! (A location may be specified)

SHELTER! Hazard and safety strategy. 

© Copyright 2009-2020, All Rights Reserved. The “I Love U Guys” Foundation. Conifer, CO. The Standard Response Protocol and Logo are Trademarks of The “I Love U 
Guys” Foundation and may be registered in certain jurisdictions. This material may be duplicated for distribution per “SRP Terms of Use”. SRP TxSSC 2021 Poster_EN |  
V 4.0 | Revised: 07/14/2020 | http://iloveuguys.org

STUDENTS ADULTS
Use appropriate safety strategy 
for the hazard

Lead safety strategy 
Account for students and adults 
Notify if missing, extra or injured students 
or adults

Hazard Safety Strategy 
Tornado	 Evacuate to shelter area 
Hazmat	 Seal the room 
Earthquake	 Drop, cover and hold 
Tsunami	 Get to high ground

®

Materials  
 and note to Printer

DRILL IN PROGRESS 
NO ONE IN OR OUT

SIMULACRO EN CURSO 
NO SE PERMITE LA ENTRADA 

O SALIDA DE NADIE
© Copyright 2009-2020, All Rights Reserved. The “I Love U Guys” Foundation. Conifer, CO. The Standard Response Protocol and Logo are Trademarks of The “I Love U 
Guys” Foundation and may be registered in certain jurisdictions. This material may be duplicated for distribution per “SRP Terms of Use”.  
Drill in Progress_EN-SP | V 3.0 | Revised: 04/16/2020

© Copyright 2009-2020, All Rights Reserved. The “I Love U Guys” Foundation. Conifer, CO. The Standard Response Protocol and Logo are 
Trademarks of The “I Love U Guys” Foundation and may be registered in certain j04/16ictions. This material may be duplicated for distribution 
per “SRP Terms of Use”. SRP-K12 Secure Door Poster_EN-SP | V 3.0 | Revised: 04/31/2020

SCHOOL IS SECURED 
NO ONE IN OR OUT

ESCUELA BAJO PROTECCIÓN 
NADIE PUEDE ENTRAR

SCHOOL IS SECURED 
MONITORED ENTRY AND CONTROLLED RELEASE

ESCUELA BAJO PROTECCIÓN 
ENTRADA VIGILADA Y SALIDA CONTROLADA

© Copyright 2009-2020, All Rights Reserved. The “I Love U Guys” Foundation. Conifer, CO. The Standard Response Protocol and Logo are 
Trademarks of The “I Love U Guys” Foundation and may be registered in certain j04/16ictions. This material may be duplicated for distribution 
per “SRP Terms of Use”. SRP-K12 Secure Monitored Door Poster_EN-SP | V 3.0 | Revised: 04/31/2020

0 

0 

G II II 
~ 

L_____ 



Page 24 of <<

Public Address Protocol Poster 
The Public Address Protocol Poster can be placed near 
all reasonable public address locations. This is a sample. 
Your district, department or agency should customize this 
poster for regional hazards. It is available to download in 
Microsoft Word format. The public address is repeated 
twice each time the public address is performed. 

Hold! In your room or area. Clear the halls. •
Secure! Get Inside. Lock outside doors. •
Lockdown! Locks, Lights, Out of Sight. •
Evacuate! To a Location. •
Shelter! State the Hazard and Safety Strategy. •

 

 

PAreNt HANdout 
iNformAtioN for PAreNts ANd 
GuArdiANs 
Clear communication to parents and guardians about the 
SRP is essential so they understand the actions your school 
will be using. By being as clear as possible, you can reduce 
the amount of stress they might experience for even the 
small disruptions in a school day.  
They need to understand their roles in any incident. The 
letter-size handout describes what is expected of people 
in the school. The other side of the handout, shown here,  
is Parent Guidance which outlines the roles of the parents 
and guardians during Secure and Lockdown events. 
Schools should outline the methods with which they will 
be communicating with parents and guardians about any 
drill or actual incident. It is imperative that parents and 
guardians keep their contact information up to date with 
the school and district. 
Additionally, there is a web page for parents to go to for 
detailed information and conversations. Your school or 
district is welcome to post this on your website for easy 
access. 
The Parent Handout is available in accessible PDF formats 
in English and Spanish. 

STANDARD ®RESPONSE PROTOCOL 
PARENT GUIdANCE 
In the event of a live incident, parents may have questions 
about their role.  

SECURE 
“Get Inside. lock outside doors” 

Secure is called when there is something 
dangerous outside of the building. Students 
and staff are brought into the building and 
the outside doors will be locked. The school
might display the Building is Secured poster 
on entry doors or nearby windows. Inside, it 
will be business as usual. 

SHoUld PARENTS CoME To THE SCHool 
dURING A SECURE EVENT? 
Probably not. Every effort is made 
to conduct classes as normal dur-
ing a secure event. Additionally, 
parents may be asked to stay out-
side during a Secure event. 
WHAT IF PARENTS NEEd 
To PICK UP THEIR 
STUdENT? 
Depending on the situation, it may 
not be safe to release the student. 
As the situation evolves, Secure 
might change to a Monitored Entry 
and/or Controlled Release. 
WIll PARENTS bE NoTIFIEd WHEN A 
SCHool GoES INTo SECURE? 
When a secure event is brief or the hazard is non-violent, 
like a wild animal on the playground, there may not be a 
need to notify parents while the Secure is in place.  
With longer or more dangerous events, the school should 
notify parents that the school has increased their security. 

loCKdoWN 
“locks, lights, out of Sight” 

A Lockdown is called when there is some-
thing dangerous inside of the building. Stu-
dents and staff are trained to enter or remain 
in a room that can be locked, and maintain 
silence. 
A Lockdown is only initiated when there is 

an active threat inside or very close to the building. 

SCHOOL IS SECURED 
MONITORED ENTRY AND CONTROLLED RELEASE 

ESCUELA BAJO PROTECCIÓN 
ENTRADA VIGILADA Y SALIDA CONTROLADA 

© Copyright 2009-2020, All Rights Reserved. The “I Love U Guys” Foundation. Conifer, CO. The Standard Response Protocol and Logo are 
Trademarks of The “I Love U Guys” Foundation and may be registered in certain j04/16ictions. This material may be duplicated for distribution 
per “SRP Terms of Use”. SRP-K12 Secure Monitored Door Poster_EN-SP | V 3.0 | Revised: 04/31/2020 

SHoUld PARENTS CoME To THE SCHool 
dURING A loCKdoWN? 
The natural inclination for parents is to go to the school dur-
ing a Lockdown. Understandable, but perhaps problematic. 
If there is a threat inside the building, law enforcement will 
be responding. It is unlikely that parents will be granted ac-
cess to the building or even the campus. If parents are al-
ready in the school, they will be instructed to Lockdown as 
well. 
SHoUld PARENTS TExT THEIR STUdENTS? 
The school recognizes the importance of communication 
between parents and students during a Lockdown event. 
Parents should be aware though, during the initial period of 
a Lockdown, it may not be safe for students to text their 
parents. As the situation resolves, students may be asked 
to update their parents on a regular basis. 
In some cases, students may be evacuated and transported 
off-site for a student-parent reunification.  
WHAT AboUT 
UNANNoUNCEd dRIllS? 
The school may conduct unsched-
uled drills, however it is highly dis-
couraged to conduct one without 
announcing that it as a drill. That’s 
called an unannounced drill and can 
cause undue concern and stress. 
Parents should recognize that the 
school will always inform students 
that it is a drill during the initial an-
nouncement. 
It’s important to differentiate between a drill and an exer-
cise. A drill is used to create the “Muscle Memory” associ-
ated with a practiced action. There is no simulation of an 
event; this is simply performing the action. An exercise sim-
ulates an actual event to test the capacity of personnel and 
equipment. 
CAN PARENTS obSERVE oR PARTICIPATE IN 
THE dRIllS? 
The school welcomes parents who wish to observe or par-
ticipate in drills. 

DRILL IN PROGRESS
NO ONE IN OR OUT 

SIMULACRO EN CURSO
NO SE PERMITE LA ENTRADA 

O SALIDA DE NADIE 
© Copyright 2009-2020, All Rights Reserved. The “I Love U Guys” Foundation. Conifer, CO. The Standard Response Protocol and Log o are Trademarks of The “I Love U 
Guys” Foundation and may be registered in certain jurisdictions. This material may be duplicated for distribution per “SRP Terms of Use”.  
Drill in Progress_EN-SP | V 3.0 | Revised: 04/16/2020 

© Copyright 2009-2020, All Rights Reserved. The “I Love U Guys” Foundation. Conifer, CO. The Standard Response Protocol and Logo are 
Trademarks of The “I Love U Guys” Foundation and may be registered in certain jurisdictions. This material may be duplicated for distribution 
per “SRP Terms of Use”. SRP-K12 2021 Parent Handout | V 3.0 | Revised: 04/21/2020 | http://iloveuguys.org 

 

© Copyright 2009-2020, All Rights Reserved. The “I Love U Guys” Foundation. Conifer, CO. The Standard Response Protocol and Logo are Trademarks of The “I Love U Guys” Foundation and may be 
registered in certain jurisdictions. This material may be duplicated for distribution per “SRP Terms of Use”. SRP Public Address Poster | V 3.0 | Revised: 01/17/2020 | http://iloveuguys.org  
 

 
 

 

 
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!

HOLD   SECURE LOCKDOWN EVACUATE SHELTER 

IN AN EMERGENCY 
TAKE ACTION 

Standard Response Protocol – Public Address 

Medical  
Emergency 

Hold in your Room or Area. Clear the halls. 

Threat Outside Secure! Get inside. Lock outside doors. 
Threat Inside Lockdown! Locks, Lights, Out of Sight! 
Bomb Evacuate to (location) Shelter for Bomb!  
Earthquake Shelter for Earthquake!  
Fire Inside Evacuate to the (location) 
Hazmat Shelter for Hazmat! Seal your Rooms 

Weapon Lockdown! Locks, Lights, Out of Sight! 
Tornado Evacuate to (location) Shelter for Tornado!  
! !

' 
SlllNDARO' 

RESPONSE PROroCOL 

0 
~ .,!o] 

RESPONSE PROTOCOL 



Red CaRd/GReen CaRd 
This is for use in an Evacuation Assembly to do a quick 
assessment of the status of all groups. It is not for class-
room use during a Lockdown or Lockdown Drill.  
There are three different types for different situations, so 
choose to use the one that’s best for your environment. 
After arriving at an Evacuation Assembly and taking roll, 
the Red/Green Cards are used for administration or first 
responders to quickly, visually identify the status of the 
teachers’ classes after an evacuation. 

Green Card (OK) - All students accounted for, No im-•
mediate help is necessary 
Red Card (Help) - Extra or missing students, or vital •
information must be exchanged 

Red/GReen/Med CaRd 
Red and White Cross (Medical Help) - Immediate •
medical attention is needed 

Red/GReen/Roll CaRd 
This includes a roll sheet for users to record who is in •
their group. 

Red/GReen/aleRt CaRd 
The Alert card is used to indicate there is a problem •
in your group and you need assistance.  

VIdeo tRaInInG 
There are also some videos you can download from 
http://iloveuguys.org, or YouTube, to use for training pur-
poses.  

the Standard Response Protocol (SRP)� for •
 Students (7:26) 
This is a teenage student speaking with a School 
Resource Officer about the actions of the SRP. It’s 
appropriate for students in middle school and older. 
lockdown drill with Standard Response •
 Protocol (3:35) 
This was recorded during a High School Lockdown 
drill. It includes interviews with students, and is ap-
propriate for all ages of students. 
For the very little ones, •
There are links on the website to training modules 
that were created for younger students by school 
districts. We link to those with permission by the cre-
ators. 

Id�CaRdS 
Art for printing onto 
identification cards is 
available for slotted 
and unslotted cards in 
the standard size of 
3.375” x 2.125”. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PoCket GuIde 
This is a quick guide to the five actions which folds to the 
size of a business card to fit in wallets, pockets, and ID 
card holders. It prints on two sides of letter-size paper and 
there are three to a page. 

SRP K12 2021 | Standard Response Protocol | Version 3.0 | 05/04/2020                                                                                            Page 25 of 33

HOLD 
In Your Room Or Area 
Students:  

• Clear the hallways and remain in the 
area or room until “All Clear” is 
announced 

• Do business as usual 
Adults and staff: 
• Close and lock the door 
• Account for students and adults 
• Do business as usual 

SECURE 
Get Inside.  
Lock Outside Doors. 

Students: 
• Return to inside of building 
• Do business as usual 
Adults and Staff: 
• Bring everyone indoors 
• Lock outside doors 
• Increase situational awareness 
• Account for students and adults 
• Do business as usual 

LOCKDOWN 
Locks, Lights, Out Of Sight 
Students: 

• Move away from sight 
• Maintain silence 
• Do not open the door 
Adults and Staff: 
• Recover students from hallway if 

possible 
• Lock the classroom door 
• Turn out the lights 
• Move away from sight 
• Maintain silence 
• Account for students and adults 
• Do not open the door 
• Prepare to evade or defend 

EVACUATE 
To Announced Location 
Students: 

• Leave stuff behind if required to 
• If possible, bring their phone 
• Follow instructions 
Adults and Staff: 
• Bring roll sheet and Go Bag (unless 

instructed not to take anything with 
them, dependent on reason for 
evacuation.) 

• Lead students to Evacuation 
location 

• Account for students and adults 
• Report injuries or problems  using 

Red Card/ Green Card method. 

SHELTER 
For A Hazard Using  Safety 
Strategy 

Safety Strategies might 
include: 
• Evacuate to shelter area 
• Seal the room 
• Drop, cover and hold 
• Get to high ground 
Students: 
• Use appropriate safety strategy 
Adults and Staff: 
• Lead safety strategy 
• Account for students and adults 
• Report injuries or problems using 

Red Card/Green Card method 

MEDICAL HELP

MEDICAL HELP

STANDARD
RESPONSE PROTOCOL®

In the event of an evacuation, take this 
card with you. To use this card, fold along 
dotted lines so the appropriate message 
is outward facing.

© Copyright 2009-2020, All Rights Reserved. The “I Love U 
Guys” Foundation. Conifer, CO. The Standard Response 
Protocol and Logo are Trademarks of The “I Love U Guys” 
Foundation and may be registered in certain jurisdictions. This 
material may be duplicated for distribution per “SRP Terms of 
Use”. SRP-K12 2021 red green med card | V 3.0 | Revised: 
07/14/2020

HOLD 
In Your Room Or Area 
Students:  

• Clear the hallways and remain in the 
area or room until “All Clear” is 
announced 

• Do business as usual 
Adults and staff: 
• Close and lock the door 
• Account for students and adults 
• Do business as usual 

SECURE 
Get Inside.  
Lock Outside Doors. 

Students: 
• Return to inside of building 
• Do business as usual 
Adults and Staff: 
• Bring everyone indoors 
• Lock outside doors 
• Increase situational awareness 
• Account for students and adults 
• Do business as usual 

LOCKDOWN 
Locks, Lights, Out Of Sight 
Students: 

• Move away from sight 
• Maintain silence 
• Do not open the door 
Adults and Staff: 
• Recover students from hallway if 

possible 
• Lock the classroom door 
• Turn out the lights 
• Move away from sight 
• Maintain silence 
• Account for students and adults 
• Do not open the door 
• Prepare to evade or defend 

EVACUATE 
To Announced Location 
Students: 

• Leave stuff behind if required to 
• If possible, bring their phone 
• Follow instructions 
Adults and Staff: 
• Bring roll sheet and Go Bag (unless 

instructed not to take anything with 
them, dependent on reason for 
evacuation.) 

• Lead students to Evacuation 
location 

• Account for students and adults 
• Report injuries or problems  using 

Red Card/ Green Card method. 

SHELTER 
For A Hazard Using  Safety 
Strategy 

Safety Strategies might 
include: 
• Evacuate to shelter area 
• Seal the room 
• Drop, cover and hold 
• Get to high ground 
Students: 
• Use appropriate safety strategy 
Adults and Staff: 
• Lead safety strategy 
• Account for students and adults 
• Report injuries or problems using 

Red Card/Green Card method 

Roll Sheet - Use this sheet to record names at an evacuation assembly point. Also 
account for missing or extra staff and occupants.

Missing Staff or Students

Extra Staff or Students

STANDARD
RESPONSE PROTOCOL®

In the event of an evacuation, take this 
card with you. To use this card, fold along 
dotted lines so the appropriate message 
is outward facing.

© Copyright 2009-2020, All Rights Reserved. The “I Love U 
Guys” Foundation. Conifer, CO. The Standard Response 
Protocol and Logo are Trademarks of The “I Love U Guys” 
Foundation and may be registered in certain jurisdictions. This 
material may be duplicated for distribution per “SRP Terms of 
Use”. SRP-K12 2021 red green med card | V 3.0 | Revised: 
07/14/2020

OK

OK

HELP

HELP

OK
OK

HELP
HELP

OK

OK

HELP

HELP

HOLD 
In Your Room Or Area 
Students:  

• Clear the hallways and remain in the 
area or room until “All Clear” is 
announced 

• Do business as usual 
Adults and staff: 
• Close and lock the door 
• Account for students and adults 
• Do business as usual 

SECURE 
Get Inside.  
Lock Outside Doors. 

Students: 
• Return to inside of building 
• Do business as usual 
Adults and Staff: 
• Bring everyone indoors 
• Lock outside doors 
• Increase situational awareness 
• Account for students and adults 
• Do business as usual 

LOCKDOWN 
Locks, Lights, Out Of Sight 
Students: 

• Move away from sight 
• Maintain silence 
• Do not open the door 
Adults and Staff: 
• Recover students from hallway if 

possible 
• Lock the classroom door 
• Turn out the lights 
• Move away from sight 
• Maintain silence 
• Account for students and adults 
• Do not open the door 
• Prepare to evade or defend 

EVACUATE 
To Announced Location 
Students: 

• Leave stuff behind if required to 
• If possible, bring their phone 
• Follow instructions 
Adults and Staff: 
• Bring roll sheet and Go Bag (unless 

instructed not to take anything with 
them, dependent on reason for 
evacuation.) 

• Lead students to Evacuation 
location 

• Account for students and adults 
• Report injuries or problems  using 

Red Card/ Green Card method. 

SHELTER 
For A Hazard Using  Safety 
Strategy 

Safety Strategies might 
include: 
• Evacuate to shelter area 
• Seal the room 
• Drop, cover and hold 
• Get to high ground 
Students: 
• Use appropriate safety strategy 
Adults and Staff: 
• Lead safety strategy 
• Account for students and adults 
• Report injuries or problems using 

Red Card/Green Card method 

ALERT

ALERT
© Copyright 2009-2020, All Rights Reserved. The “I Love U 
Guys” Foundation. Conifer, CO. The Standard Response 
Protocol and Logo are Trademarks of The “I Love U Guys” 
Foundation and may be registered in certain jurisdictions. This 
material may be duplicated for distribution per “SRP Terms of 
Use”. SRP-K12 2021 red green alert card | V 3.0 | Revised: 
07/14/2020

In the event of an evacuation, take this 
card with you. To use this card, fold along 
dotted lines so the appropriate message 
is outward facing.

STANDARD
RESPONSE PROTOCOL®

HOLD
In your room or area. 
Clear the halls.

SHELTER
Using the announced 
hazard and strategy

SECURE
Get inside. 
Lock outside doors.
LOCKDOWN
Locks, lights, 
out of sight
EVACUATE
To the announced 
location

STANDARD RESPONSE
PROTOCOL

Copyright 2020. All rights reserved. The “I Love U 
Guys”  Foundation

Lockdown! 
Locks, Lights, 
Out of Sight 
Lockdown is called 
when there is a threat 

or hazard inside the building. 
Students: 

Move away from sight •
Maintain silence •
Do not open the door •

Adults: 
Recover students from hallways if it •
is safe to do so 
Lock classroom door •
Lights out •
Move away from sight •
Maintain silence •
Account for students and adults •
Do not open the door •
Prepare to evade or defend•

Secure! 
Get inside. 
Lock outside 
doors. 

Secure  is called when there is a 
threat or hazard outside the 
building. 
Students: 

Return to inside of building •
Do business as usual •

Adults: 
Recover students and staff •
from outside the building 
Increase situational awareness •
Account for students and •
adultsDo business as usual

Evacuate! 
“To a location” 
Evacuate is called to 
move students and 
staff from one 

location to another. 
Students: 

Leave stuff behind if required •
If possible, bring your phone •
Follow instructions •

Adults: 
Bring roll sheet if possible, take Go •
Bag (unless instructed not to take 
anything) 
Lead students to evacuation •
location 
Account for students and adults •
Report injuries or problems to first •
responders using Red Card/Green 
Card

Hold! 
In your room or 
area.  
Clear the halls. 
 

Hold is called when the hallways 
need to be kept clear, even during 
class changes. 
Students: 

Remain in your area until the “All •
Clear” is indicated. 

Adults: 
Close and lock door •
Business as usual •
Account for students and adults• Student Safety 

A critical ingredient in the safe school recipe is the 
classroom

 response to an incident at school. 
W

eather events, fire, accidents, intruders and other 
threats to student safety are scenarios that are 

 ff
at

s ,
sr

eh
ca

et 
,s

tn
ed

ut
s  y

b r
of 

de
nia

rt 
dn

a 
de

nn
alpand adm

inistration. 
Standard Response Protocol (SRP) 
The SRP is based on the response to any given 
scenario. The benefits becom

e quickly apparent. By 
standardizing the vocabulary, all stakeholders can 
understand the response and status of the event. 
The protocol also allows for a predictable series of 
actions as an event unfolds. 
The SRP is based on five actions: Hold, Secure, 
Lockdown, Evacuate, and Shelter. Each has specific 
staff and student directives that are unique to the 
action. 

The Standard Response Protocol is a program
 of the 

“I Love U Guys” Foundation. M
ore inform

ation and 
detailed m

aterials can be found at 
https://iloveuguys.org

Copyright 2020. All rights 
reserved. The “I Love U 
Guys”  Foundation

Shelter!
“State the hazard 
and safety 
strategy” 
Shelter is called when 

the need for personal protection is 
necessary. 
Safety strategies might include: 

Evacuate to shelter area•
Seal the room•
Drop, cover and hold•
Get to high ground•

Adults:
Lead safety strategy•
Take roll, account for students•
Report injuries or problems to first•
responders using Red Card/Green
Card

9 

0 0 CD 

~ 

0 
0 

e 
~~ 

9 
~ 9 

0 ® 

0 ~ 
0 

e 

J 
9 

0 CD 

~ 
0 

e 

I 0 0 



Drills vs. ExErcisEs 
Media coverage exploring issues with lockdown drills po-
tentially causing trauma has resulted in the need for clari-
fication. Much of the coverage attributed the word “Drill” 
to what was actually an “Exercise.”  
School lockdown drills, active shooter drills, and exercises 
are not synonymous. Nor are they universally defined, un-
derstood and practiced. Some of this confusion may be a 
result of actual FEMA guidance (reproduced to the right), 
and other publicly available materials on the subject. 
Drill 
The primary objective of a drill is for participants to build 
muscle memory, and practice an action to use in various 
events or situations. A secondary objective is for the people 
who are administering the drill to validate procedures, 
clarify roles and identify operational process gaps. 
In the school safety context, it is critical to distinguish be-
tween drills and exercises. Drills are for staff and students, 
and are educational opportunities to practice a life safety 
skill. 

ExErcisE 
The over-all learning objective of an exercise is to test re-
sponse, capacity and resources across the system. An 
exercise often includes a description or enactment of an 
incident, depending on the type of exercise that’s being 
conducted. 
Exercises are broader in scope. These typically present a 
hypothetical emergency scenario (hurricane, earthquake, 
biochemical emergency, etc.) designed to encourage peo-
ple to think on their toes, work together, and apply lessons 
learned from drills. 
Invite people from your community to participate as volun-
teers in an Exercise, or to observe it. You will probably be 
introducing scenarios they have thought about; this level 
of engagement can be quite useful.  
A Tabletop Exercise is a roundtable session administered 
by a facilitator. Team members discuss their roles and 
share observations regarding a simulated emergency sce-
nario. It’s designed to test each member’s ability to refer 
and react to their role in the emergency plan, as well as 
their readiness to communicate with other members as 
needed.�These usually run a few hours in duration, and 
are highly valuable for identifying the unique threats in each 
community. 
In a Functional Exercise, participants perform their duties 
in a simulated emergency environment. Functional exer-
cises typically focus on specific team members and/or 
procedures, and are often used to identify process gaps 
associated with multi-agency coordination, command and 
control. 
A Full-scale Exercise is similar in execution to a functional 
exercise, and is as close to the real thing as possible. It 
can include employees from multiple functions, community 
first responders, local businesses, and regulatory agen-
cies.�This type of exercise should utilize, to the extent pos-
sible, the actual systems and equipment that would be 
dispatched during a real event.�From a duration standpoint, 
full-scale exercises often take place over the course of an 
entire business day. 
srP EvoluTion 
In developing the Standard Response Protocol, The “I 
Love U Guys” Foundation took the following approach:  

Identify the hazard; •
Develop response; •
Train; •
Practice; •
Drill; •
Exercise. •

Page 26 of <<

Drills 
 vs. Exercises

DRILL IN PROGRESS 
NO ONE IN OR OUT

SIMULACRO EN CURSO 
NO SE PERMITE LA ENTRADA 

O SALIDA DE NADIE
© Copyright 2009-2020, All Rights Reserved. The “I Love U Guys” Foundation. Conifer, CO. The Standard Response Protocol and Logo are Trademarks of The “I Love U 
Guys” Foundation and may be registered in certain jurisdictions. This material may be duplicated for distribution per “SRP Terms of Use”.  
Drill in Progress_EN-SP | V 3.0 | Revised: 04/16/2020

~ ~~~ 
RESPONSE ~ 



ProBlem idenTiFicaTion 
The first priority of the SRP was to introduce common, 
plain language responses to various events. Assessment 
of various school responses in 2009 revealed there was 
no common language between students, staff, parents, 
media and first responders. The core areas examined were: 

Something happening outside the school; •
Something happening inside of the school; •
How to get out of the school; •
Natural or man-made hazards; •
Keeping the halls clear. •

develoP�reSPonSe 
Given those conditions, the Standard Response Protocol 
was developed, piloted and released. 
Train 
The next step in the process is providing training to stu-
dents and staff on each of the response protocols. For ex-
ample, the Foundation has developed materials for training 
students and staff on the SRP. 
PracTice 
Once training has been delivered, practice is recommended 
prior to any drill. This may initially involve a discussion be-
tween staff and students to: 

Find various exit routes in advance of an Evacuation •
drill; 
Discuss ways to protect oneself from various •
weather hazards prior to a Shelter drill; 
Identify Safe Zones within a classroom and practice •
moving students to those zones prior to a Lockdown 
drill; 
Talk about situations that may require a Secure or •
Hold action. 

communicaTinG aBouT drillS 
Prior to conducting any drills, schools are advised to send 
concise communication to parents and guardians about 
the nature and objectives of, and reason for, the drill. This 
can be done with an email or letter or both. It is not nec-
essary to state the exact day or time of the certain drills.  
If parents feel thier student(s) will be upset by certain drills, 
invite them to attend, or give them a chance to opt their 
family out of the drill. If possible, arrange to have an opt-
out student stay on school grounds, but not participate, in 
order to minimize disruption to the school day. 

SRP K12 2021 | Standard Response Protocol | Version 3.0 | 05/04/2020                                                                                            Page 27 of 33

Fema Guidance - iS-362.a  
FEMA guidance on training, drilling and exercising, from 
the course IS-362.A “Multihazard Emergency Planning 
for Schools.” 
 
TraininG 

Briefings: Short meetings that provide information •
about a specific topic (e.g., new evacuation sites, 
tips on how to use the student information system 
to find student contact information, new district 
contact information). 
Seminars/classroom training: Used to intro-•
duce new programs, policies, or procedures. Pro-
vide information to students and staff on roles and 
responsibilities. This may also include training pre-
sented outside of the school (e.g., first aid, CERT). 
Workshops: Resemble a seminar but are em-•
ployed to build specific products, such as a draft 
plan or policy. 

drillS 
Drills are operations-based exercises that usually test a 
single specific operation or function within a single entity. 
Conducted in a realistic environment, drills are often 
used to test new policies or equipment, practice current 
skills, or prepare for larger scale exercises. 
FuncTional exerciSe 
A functional exercise is the simulation of an emergency 
event that: 

Involves various levels of school, school district, •
and emergency management personnel. 
Involves trained personnel “acting out” their actual •
roles. 
Evaluates both the internal capabilities and re-•
sponses of the school, school district, and emer-
gency management officials. 
Evaluates the coordination activities between the •
school, school district, and emergency manage-
ment personnel. 

Full-Scale exerciSe 
A full-scale exercise is a multiagency, multijurisdic-•
tional, multidiscipline operations-based exercise 
involving functional (e.g., Joint Field Office, emer-
gency operations center) and “boots on the 
ground” response (e.g., firefighters decontaminat-
ing mock victims). 
 
https://emilms.fema.gov/IS362a/ (Circa 2019.06.12)

“

” 



LOckdOwn driLL guidance 
A critical aspect in implementing the SRP with fidelity is 
the Lockdown Drill. Successful drills provide participants 
with the “muscle memory” should an actual Lockdown 
occur. Drills also reveal deficiencies that may exist in either 
procedures, training or personnel. 
Understand that a lockdown drill is for practicing an action, 
not an event. An actual lockdown can occur due to a va-
riety of threatening situations which may present an imme-
diate and ongoing danger to the safety of�students, staff 
and visitors within a building. 
preparatiOn 
Prior to drilling, students, staff and administration should 
review the SRP Training Presentation, which is available 
on The “I Love U Guys” Foundation website. Administration 
should also verify with law enforcement their use of the 
SRP in the school or district. 
Teachers should take time with students to identify and 
occupy a “Safe Zone” in the classroom where they cannot 
be seen through any corridor windows. If visibility in a 
classroom is problematic, window coverings or alternative 
locations should be identified. Speak with  local law en-
forcement about their preference about using window cov-
erings. 
Additionally, the following instructions should be delivered 
to students. 

Locate yourself at a point in the classroom where 1.
you can no longer see out the corridor window. 

Maintain silence. No cell phone calls. 2.
Refrain from texting during drills. <.

partnerships 
School level drills should have district support. There may 
also be district resources available to assist in conducting 
the drill. Another key partnership is with local law enforce-
ment. Local patrol, community resource officers or school 
resource officers should be part of the drill process. 
the emergency respOnse team 
Some schools have a pre-identified Building/School Emer-
gency Response Team. These teams are effective for re-
sponding to any type of incident. 
It is a noted best practice for administration to survey the 
staff population for prior emergency response, military or 
law enforcement experience, and specialized training and 
skills for use in district emergency operations. 
the LOckdOwn driLL team 
During an actual lockdown, members of the Emergency 
Response Team may be in classrooms or administrative 

offices in lockdown mode and unable to assist with the re-
sponse. 
The Lockdown Drill Team should not include personnel 
that have specific roles during an actual emergency within 
that school. Instead, the team might include a school nurse 
or medical professional, district safety representatives, law 
enforcement, and those administrators from another 
school.  
staff nOtificatiOn 
When lockdown drills are first being introduced to a school, 
it is absolutely okay to tell staff in advance of the drill. 
There may be staff members adversely affected by surprise 
drills. 
speciaL needs cOnsideratiOns 
It is critical to identify any specific issues that may cause 
challenges for students with special needs or disabilities 
and incorporate appropriate actions for notification prior 
to drills. It is not recommended that additional assistance 
be provided in special needs areas for drills, UNLESS this 
assistance is part of the plan and those resources will be 
assigned in an actual emergency. 
the pre-driLL briefing 
Prior to the lockdown drill a short planning meeting with the 
Lockdown Drill Team should occur. The agenda is simple: 

Review the floor plan and team member 1.
assignments; 

Expected drill duration; 2.
The door knock and classroom conversation; <.
Potential student or staff distress. 4.

Page 28 of <<

LOckdOwn 
 drills

OptiOns-based training 
Both staff and students should be educated about the 
options that can be used in an active threat situation. 
Realistically, students and staff are not always in their 
classrooms or behind closed doors as they go through-
out their busy school days; because of this, students 
and staff should be taught additional strategies that go 
beyond Locking Down in a classroom. Possible discus-
sion can include what a staff member or student should 
do when in a bathroom, cafeteria, or hallway if an active 
threat arises. This is where self-evacuation strategies 
could play a roll.  
Lockdown drills can be conducted at varied times, such 
as when some classes are outside or at recess. The 
staff and students at recess can practice how to safely 
leave the school grounds Age-appropriate strategies 
can be discussed.



ANNOuNCINg THE LOCKDOWN DRILL 
When using public address to announce a lockdown drill, 
repeat, “Lockdown. Locks, Lights, Out of Sight. This is a 
drill.” It’s important to tell students and staff that it’s a drill. 
Failure to do so will most likely result in parents, media 
and maybe even law enforcement coming to the school. 
“Lockdown. Locks, Lights, Out of Sight. This is a drill. 
 Lockdown. Locks, Lights, Out of Sight. This is a drill.” 
Alternately, consider announcing the drill prior to saying 
which type of drill it is. This technique will prevent an im-
mediate reaction to the word Lockdown.  
“This is a drill. Lockdown. Locks, Lights, Out of Sight” 
“This is a drill. Lockdown. Locks, Lights, Out of Sight,” 
or 
“We are going to conduct a lockdown drill. Please listen 
for the lockdown announcement.” 
CONDuCTINg THE DRILL 
The Lockdown Drill Team should be broken into groups of 
two or three members who go to individual classrooms. 
One of the members acts as “Scribe” and documents 
each classroom response. Large schools will need multiple 
Lockdown Drill Teams in order to complete the drill in a 
timely fashion. 
At the classroom door, team members listen for noise and 
look through the corridor window for any student or staff 
visibility or movement. A team member then knocks on 
the door and requests entry. There should be no response 
to this request. At this point a member of the team unlocks 
the classroom door and announces their name and posi-
tion. A quick assessment is made by the safety team. The 
occupants of the room are reminded that they are still in 
lockdown and should remain so until they hear an an-
nouncement that the drill is completed.  
A Lockdown Response Worksheet was created by The “I 
Love U Guys” Foundation to assist in documenting the 
lockdown drills. See Appendix A. 
WINDOWS 
Often there is a conversation about inside and outside 
windows. Corridor windows are left uncovered so that first 
responders can see inside the room. Outside windows 
are left untouched because the threat would be inside the 
building. There are different preferences regarding window 
coverings, so please discuss this with your local responders 
to make sure you’re in agreement. 

THE CLASSROOm CONVERSATION 
Make sure to stake out a few minutes after the room has 
been checked, and before the release of the drill, to allow 
for conversation in the classroom.  
Typically, this conversation addresses the purpose of the 
drill, and the observed outcome for that classroom. Addi-
tionally, self-evacuation and other life safety strategies can 
be discussed.  
Any issues should be addressed gently but immediately. 
When possible, have a school counselor available to ad-
dress any staff or student distress. 
THE LOCKDOWN DRILL TEAm DEbRIEf 
At the conclusion of the drill, the team should reconvene 
for a debrief and use this time to review portions of the 
school safety plan. A good debriefing may reveal some 
gaps and areas for improvement in the plan.  
Any issues should be documented, the safety plan  re-
viewed, and actions items identified. An opportunity for all 
staff to submit information regarding the performance of 
the drill should be part of the after action review process. 

SRP K12 2021 | Standard Response Protocol | Version 3.0 | 05/04/2020                                                                                            Page 29 of 33

LOCKDOWN DRILLS OR ACTIVE 
SHOOTER DRILLS? 
A Lockdown Drill is designed to practice for any threat 
inside the building and to create the muscle memory. 
Therefore these Drills should only be for Lockdown, and 
not “active shooter “or “active assailant.”  
One of the primary goals of crisis preparedness is to 
develop a sense of empowerment and control. Lock-
down drills not conducted appropriately may cause 
physical and psychological harm to students, staff, and 
the overall learning environment. An active shooter or 
armed assailant exercise is specific to one type of inci-
dent, with the intended outcome of first responders and 
schools practicing their tactics. These include simulating 
a hazardous event, in which case it is more accurate to 
define them as Exercises.  
When these are conducted, participants (staff and stu-
dents) must willingly volunteer, and understand exactly 
what the scenario will be. 



Frequently Asked questions 
Since introducing the Standard Response Protocol in 2009, 
thousands of districts, departments and agencies have 
scrutinized, evaluated and ultimately implemented the pro-
gram. During the process some questions seem to come 
up often. 
seriously, WHAt does it reAlly 
Cost? 
Since its introduction in 2009, public K12 schools, districts, 
departments and agencies were free to use The “I Love U 
Guys” Foundation programs at no cost. 
In 2015, the Foundation expanded availability, and now 
offers the programs to any public or private organization 
at no charge. Download the materials and begin the 
process. 
WHAt ABout Business/CHurCH/ 
institution use? 
Please look at the materials designed specifically for insti-
tutional use on the website. http://iloveuguys.org. 
i see you oFFer trAininG. do We need 
to Buy trAininG in order to use tHe 
ProGrAMs? 
No. We’ve attempted to put enough material online so 
that schools and law enforcement can successfully imple-
ment Foundation programs. We know of thousands of 
schools across the US and Canada that have implemented 
the programs using internal resources. 
That said, part of our sustainability model relies not just on 
charitable giving, but in providing training for districts de-
partments and agencies. If your organization is interested 
in Foundation training, please contact us for rates and 
terms. 
WHAt is tHe diFFerenCe BetWeen 
seCure And loCkdoWn AGAin? 
The term "Secure" is used when there is a potential threat 
that can be mitigated by bringing everyone inside. It should 
be announced with the directive "Get inside. Lock outside 
doors," which signals to bring people in and lock exterior 
doors. While it calls for heightened situational awareness, 
it also allows for indoor activities to continue. 
The term "Lockdown" means there is an active or imminent 
threat inside or nearby requiring immediate protective ac-
tion. It is followed by the directive "Locks, Lights, Out of 
Sight" and requires locking classroom doors, turning out 
the lights, and remaining hidden until first responders ar-
rive. 

Effectively if the threat is outside the building, Secure. If 
the threat is inside the building, Lockdown. 
WHAt iF tHe tHreAt is Close to tHe 
BuildinG? 
There may be situations where both Secure and Lockdown 
protocols may be called sequentially. In this case, use Se-
cure to get people inside and lock exterior doors. When 
the perimeter is Secured, this may become a Lockdown if 
the threat is persistent and appears to be coming closer. 
Exterior doors would stay locked. 
in loCkdoWn, you suGGest 
unloCkinG tHe outside doors. 
WHAt’s uP WitH tHAt? 
No, we don’t. We occasionally hear this but our guidance 
is actually a little different. We suggest not putting anyone 
at risk by locking or unlocking outside doors. If the doors 
are locked, leave them locked. Be sure you have a plan 
that allows first responders to enter the building quickly. 
Won’t PeoPle still CoMe in tHe 
BuildinG iF tHe outside doors Are 
unloCked durinG A loCkdoWn? 
Yes, people may be able to enter the building during the 
window of time between calling a lockdown and the arrival 
of first responders. 
A lockdown is called when there is a life safety threat inside 
the building. During the development and throughout the 
lifecycle of the SRP, constant and deliberate scrutiny of all 
risk/benefit guidance is performed by the Foundation, dis-
trict and law enforcement representatives. This has resulted 
in the lockdown guidance provided. 
That said, with any guidance provided, we defer to local 
decisions. If you are a district, please consult with your 
local law enforcement representatives for final guidance. 
i tHouGHt i sAW sHelter GuidAnCe? 
When we developed the SRP and released the first version 
in 2009 we included FEMA guidance regarding the Shelter 
directive and actions. FEMA changed that guidance in 
2014. We are removing specific shelter guidance from our 
documentation and defer to the current practices published 
at http://fema.gov as well as your local emergency man-
agement guidance. 
CAn tHe srP Be used in ConJunCtion 
WitH otHer sAFety PlAns? 
Yes, absolutely. The SRP is designed as an enhancement 
to any safety plan. It covers critical incidents by standard-
izing vocabulary so stakeholders can easily understand 
the status and respond quickly when an unforeseen event 
occurs. Comprehensive safety plans will include compo-
nents such as communications, threat assessment, local 
hazards, operation continuity and reunification, among 
other items. 
CAn i ModiFy MAteriAls? 
That depends. The core actions and directives must remain 
intact. These are: 
1. Hold “In your room or area. Clear the halls.” 
2. Secure “Get inside. Locks outside doors” 
3. Lockdown “Locks, Lights, Out of Sight” 

Page 30 of 33

STANDARD
RESPONSE PROTOCOL®



4. Evacuate followed by the announced location  
5. Shelter followed by the announced hazard and safety 
strategy 
Some details may need to be customized to your location. 
For instance, the public address poster should be modified 
to include hazards and safety strategies that are specific 
to your location. 
ARE THE SOURCE MATERIALS 
AVAILABLE? 
Yes. Some of the materials are available. Original, digital 
artwork can be provided to organizations that have signed 
“Memorandum of Understanding” with The “I Love U Guys” 
Foundation. 
Please note: Currently, original artwork is only provided in 
Mac OS X, Pages version 10.0 or QuarkXPress 2019 
(15.2.1). 
CAN YOU SEND ME MATERIALS IN 
MICROSOFT WORD? 
The Public Address Poster, and all MOUs and NOIs are 
produced in Word. The other materials are not. Retaining 
the graphic integrity of the materials proved beyond our 
capabilities using Microsoft Word. 
CAN I REALLY USE THE MATERIALS? 
WHAT ABOUT COPYRIGHTS AND 
TRADEMARKS?  
Schools, districts, departments, agencies and organiza-
tions are free to use the materials under the “Terms of 
Use” outlined in this document and in the Memorandum 
of Understanding. 
DO I NEED TO ASK PERMISSION TO USE 
THE MATERIALS? 
No. You really don’t need to ask permission. But, it would 
be great if you let us know that you’re using our programs. 
DO I HAVE TO SIGN AN MOU WITH THE 
FOUNDATION? 
It is not necessary to sign an MOU with the Foundation, 
but please consider it. The Foundation is committed to 
providing programs at no cost. Yet, program development, 
enhancement, and support are cost centers for us. One 
way we fund those costs is through private grants and 
funding. 
An MOU is a strong demonstration of program validity and 
assists us with these types of funding requests. 
When you submit a completed MOU or NOI, you will be 
added to our database and notified when updates and 
new materials are available. 
DO I HAVE TO SEND A NOTICE OF 
INTENT? 
In the absence of an MOU, a Notice of Intent provides 
similar value to us regarding demonstrations of program 
validity to potential funders. Either one means that you will 
receive notification of updates and new materials. 
DO I HAVE TO NOTIFY YOU AT ALL THAT I 
AM USING THE SRP? 
We often speak with school safety stakeholders who have 
implemented the SRP but hadn’t quite mentioned it to us. 

Please let us know that your school, district, department 
or agency is using the SRP. 
It is our goal that the SRP becomes the “Gold Standard.” 
The more schools, districts, departments and agencies 
that we can show are using the program, the greater the 
chance for achieving our goal of having clear communica-
tion in a crisis. 
CAN I PUT OUR LOGO ON YOUR 
MATERIALS? 
Yes. But with some caveats. If you are a school, district, 
department or agency you may include your logo on 
posters and handouts. If you are a commercial enterprise, 
please contact us in advance with intended usage. 
In some states, we have co-branding agreements with 
“umbrella” organizations (school district insurance pools, 
school safety centers, etc.). In those states, we ask that 
you also include the umbrella organization’s branding. 
WE WOULD LIKE TO PUT THE MATERIALS 
ON OUR WEBSITE. 
Communication with your community is important. While 
you are free to place any material on your website, it’s 
preferable that you link to the materials from our website. 
The reason for this is to allow us to track material usage. 
We can then use these numbers when we seek funding. 
But, don’t let that be a show stopper. If your IT group 
prefers, just copy the materials to your site. 
DOES THE SRP WORK WITH “RUN, HIDE, 
FIGHT?” 
In 2014, the Department of Education suggested “Run, 
Hide, Fight” as the preferred response to an active shooter. 
We don’t believe the practice is mutually exclusive to the 
SRP, as that is a single-incident response. Again, consult 
with local law enforcement regarding your specific active 
shooter response. 
There may be some challenges regarding training students 
using some of the “Run, Hide, Fight” materials. The De-
partment of Education states “These videos are not rec-
ommended for viewing by minors.” 
DOES THE SRP WORK WITH A.L.I.C.E.? 
Again, we don’t believe that SRP and A.L.I.C.E. (single in-
cident response) are mutually exclusive. 
DOES THE SRP WORK WITH “AVOID, 
DENY, DEFEND?” 
The SRP attempts to be an all-hazards approach to school 
based events. Of all of the active shooter responses, our 
determination is that “Avoid, Deny, Defend” from Texas 
State University has the best positioning, linguistics and 
actions. This response was created for adults and is for 
use in workplaces.  
http://www.avoiddenydefend.org

SRP K12 2021 | Standard Response Protocol | Version 3.0 | 05/04/2020                                                                                            Page 31 of 33



Appendix A - Lockdown driLL 
worksheet 
The Lockdown Drill Worksheet was created to assist you 
when conducting Lockdown Drills. The Options check  
boxes are used when the people in the room chose to 
perform some optional actions.

Page 32 of 33



LOCKDOWN DRILL 
WORKSHEET

__________________________________________________________________________School 	

__________________________________________________________________________Date/Time 	

__________________________________________________________________________	Team Members 	

________________________________________________________________________________ 	

____________________________________________________________________________________________ 	

	Stopwatch Time ____________________ Student Population _____________________ Staff Count _____________________

Room#
Locks ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No
Lights ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No
Out of Sight ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No
Door Knock ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No
Why? ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No
Options ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No

______________________________________________________________________________________________________Notes 	

______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 	

______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 	

______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 	 	

Room#
Locks ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No
Lights ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No
Out of Sight ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No
Door Knock ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No
Why? ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No
Options ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No ☐ Yes ☐ No

______________________________________________________________________________________________________Notes 	

______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 	

______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 	

______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 	 	


	00 2022-01-05 Ad-Hoc Safety Committee Agenda
	02, 03, 04 Manawa School District Site Survey Summary 12-3-2021
	05 SRP-K12-2021-Operational-Guidance-V4.0

